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Bogue Power Plant, Now Operating
on Natural Gas
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We are the people leading the
energy revolution, unleashing
Jamaica’s growth and prosperity.

Mission

Through inspired and committed

employees and innovative
technologies, we deliver an energy
solution for every Jamaican -
improving lives, fueling the growth
of businesses, and powering

the development of Jamaica.




P> Corporate Profile

Jamaica Public Service Company Limited
(JPS) is a vertically integrated electric
utility company and the sole licensed
distributor of electricity in Jamaica. The
Company is engaged in the generation,
transmission and distribution  of
electricity, and also purchases power
from seven Independent Power
Producers.

In April 2011, Marubeni Corporation
entered into a Purchase and Sale
Agreement with Korea East-West Power
(EWP), for joint ownership of majority
shares (80%) in the Jamaica Public
Service Company Ltd (JPS). The
Government of Jamaica and a small
group of minority shareholders own the
remaining shares.

JPS

JPS currently has 630,000 customers
who are served by a workforce of 1,700
employees.

The Company owns and operates: 4
power stations, 9 hydroelectric plants,
and 1 wind farm.

Along with the provision of electricity, JPS
is a key partner in national development.
The company has a vibrant corporate
social responsibility portfolio and makes
significant contributions in the areas of
education and youth development. The
company also has a strong environmental
focus and carries out its operations in an
environmentally friendly manner.

The Office of Utilities Regulation (OUR),
is the independent regulatory agency with
responsibility for the electricity sector.
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A Section of the JPS Munro Wind Farm
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P> Statement to Shareholders

Overview

In 2016, the energy landscape continued to change -
locally, regionally and internationally. JPS experienced
that change first hand and was an integral part of
milestone achievements in the local energy sector.

First, a new regulatory framework emerged, including
a new licence for JPS, a new Electricity Act, and a
revised act to guide the Office of Utility Regulation.
Government policies and practices were changed as
the many players in the industry aligned around the
vision for Jamaica’s energy sector that would both
further economic growth and promote energy security.
This vision survived a change in government
administration and a number of technical and financial
challenges.

Throughout the year, JPS took bold steps to deliver
on our vision to lead an energy revolution to unleash
Jamaica’s growth and prosperity. We continued to be
guided by the four pillars of our energy strategy for
Jamaica: fuel diversification, smart grid technology,
unique solutions for customers, and nation building
initiatives  for  energy efficiency, customer
empowerment and energy education. We achieved
several major breakthroughs in our operations, and
utilised technology to improve service to our
customers, while capitalizing on our human capital.
We also became better organized to meet the
demands of the changing market.

2016 also repositioned JPS in the market as the
Energy Experts, and we continued to enjoy improved
relationships with our stakeholders through significant
improvements in customer service, an expanded
media relations programme, the roll-out of our
“Reimagine Energy” campaign, a more strategic
approach to corporate giving and greater engagement
of communities, regulators and policy makers.

Licence Amendment

After almost two years of discussions and
negotiations with various representatives of the GOJ
and the Ministry of Energy, and based on guidance
received from several international consultants, ESET
and the OUR, we were able to successfully conclude
deliberations which resulted in a JPS Electricity
Licence on January 27, 2016.

JPS

This 2016 Electricity Licence was issued specifically
with the view to spur development, promote energy
efficiency and renewable development, and facilitate
the growth of the Jamaican economy. It provides
greater regulatory certainty and improved investor
confidence which will facilitate the ability of the utility
company and other energy sector partners to raise the
capital needed to retool the energy sector in Jamaica.

The new Licence is complemented by a new 2015
OUR Act and Electricity Act which together result in a
significant improvement and modernisation of the
regulatory laws in Jamaica.

As aresult, JPS was able to more powerfully embrace
energy efficiency programmes and net billing
initiatives without conflict and be able to fully support
the GOJ’s initiatives and policy directives for the
energy sector. This includes the desire to modernize
streetlights island-wide, to introduce new tariff
structures that support economic development, to
support IPPs which further promote renewables and
to support the introduction of LNG to Jamaica. This
new regulatory compact will make it much easier for
Jamaica to attract the billions of US dollars that are
required to modernize the energy sector over the next
decade.

Financial Performance
JPS ended 2016 with a Net Profit of $24.1 million due
primarily to the following factors.

With an increase in sales of approximately 4%, the
Company earned operating revenues of $712.5 million
for the year. Due primarily to a decrease in fuel costs
and therefore fuel revenues, revenues were $47.3
million less than 2015. It should be noted that on
average, fuel prices in 2016 were below the average
prices in 2015. Even though prices began to rise in the
latter half of 2016, the overall average was still below
2015.

In addition, due to the removal of the Bogue Plant
Reconfiguration Fund (BPRF) ($12.5 million), the
Company’s non-fuel revenues was relatively flat
between 2016 and 2015. The BPRF had been
approved by the OUR for collection over a 12-month
period, which ended in January 2016, to facilitate the
conversion of the Bogue 120 MW Power Plant to use
natural gas.
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P> Statement to Shareholders Contd

Cost of Sales for the year was $427.8 million which
reflected a $45.8 million decline over the previous
year. This reduction is primarily due to lower fuel costs
in 2016, which were somewhat offset by an increase
in the energy acquired from Independent Power
Producers (IPPs), in particular as a result of additional
power purchase agreements which became effective
during the year. During 2016, we entered into
contracts for 80 MW of additional renewable capacity
with BMR Wind, Content/WRB Solar and Wigton lll,
to purchase net energy output.

Operating Expenses grew $20.3 million over the prior
year. This includes a significant decrease in
depreciation charges of which $13.4 million related to
changes in the rates of depreciation used for certain
assets held. Specifically, the 2016 Electricity Licence
resulted in shorter useful lives for several asset
categories, notably computers and metering
equipment. The lives of these assets were
substantially reduced, for example, from 15 to 6 years
for computers and from 25 to 15 years for meters.
The depreciation rates used by the company were
also modified to bring them in line with these new
rates, which resulted in significant accelerated
depreciation charges for these categories.

The Company was able to reduce its other expenses
by $13.3 million, mainly as a result of lower
restructuring costs, house wiring expenses and other
provisions. Other notable items include: a reversal of
expenses ($3.9 million) associated with the buyout of
sick leave that did not materialize in 2015 as planned,
development fee income ($2.5 million) based on our
participation in the development activities associated
with OH 190MW project, and improvement in the
amounts earned from other income by $1.5 million.

Net Finance Costs for 2016 ($39.8 million) were $2.7
million or 6% lower than 2015, primarily due to lower
interest costs.

As a result of the foregoing factors and a taxation
charge of $8.9 million for 2016, JPS recorded a net
profit of $24.1 million as compared to the $26.5 million
earned in 2015.

Fuel Diversification

2016 marked a turning point for Jamaica, as the
country achieved several significant milestones for
fuel diversification. After more than a decade of
preparation and planning, natural gas was finally
introduced into the fuel mix for electricity generation.
In addition, the country doubled the amount of
renewables on the grid within the space of a few
months.

Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG), now accounts for
approximately 10% of JPS’ production — a notable
achievement, as we push for more diversity in the fuel
mix. The use of LNG will result in greater stability in
the price of electricity for our customers. Jamaica will
also enjoy additional economic benefits to be derived
from having LNG, including the potential for LNG
bunkering for ships, LNG transhipment services for
the Caribbean to support small scale deliveries and
natural gas supplies for industrial purposes (including
the transport sector). Jamaica is only the third country
in the region to import LNG.

LNG will further enable JPS to produce cleaner
electricity, while allowing for more seamless
integration of renewables on the grid.

With regard to renewables, JPS facilitated the addition
of 80MW of renewables in 2016, from partnerships
with several Independent Power Producers (IPPs): 36
MW of wind energy from BMR Jamaica Wind; 24MW
of wind energy from Wigton; and 20MW of solar
energy from Content/WRB Solar. In addition, the
Company began negotiation of a Power Purchase
agreement with Eight Rivers Energy Company (EREC),
which was selected by the Office of Utilities
Regulation (OUR) for the construction of a
photovoltaic power generation plant in the west of the
island, to supply up to 37 MW (net) of electricity.

Generation Performance

In 2016, JPS served the highest net demand since
2009. Demand was 155GWh or 5% higher than
forecasted. A cheaper product 2016 (US$0.18) versus
2015 (US$0.38) helped demand. The peak for 2016
656.8MW was achieved in September. Daily loads
were higher than normal for the entire year, slight
temperature increase over the period and small
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customer growth with some commercial customers
returning to the grid also contributed to increased
demand.

Smart Grid Roll-out

In 2016, JPS took first steps to introduce smart city
technology in Jamaica’s capital, with the roll-out of
smart meters in the commercial district of New
Kingston, and the replacement of streetlights to LED
streetlights with smart capabilities. As part of the
ongoing roll-out of the smart grid, JPS deployed more
than 20,000 smart meters in communities islandwide,
and unveiled the country’s first smart home.

JPS also continued its roll-out of advanced
technology to improve the reliability of power supply
to our customers, while allowing for more efficient
access to information. Critical steps were taken during
the year, to improve the company’s operations
through the greater use of technology. These
included the installation of 61 Distribution
Automation (DA) switches; a SCADA upgrade project;
the implementation of Street Light Maintenance App;
and the implementation of Enterprise Asset
Management for the Bogue Power Station.

Unique Customer Solutions

In 2016, JPS expanded customer options with our
prepaid solution, “Pay As You Go,” to approximately
1800 customers islandwide. The new solution was
embraced as an energy management tool, and was
welcomed primarily by landlords, seasonal electricity
users, and sporting facilities.

Our Energy Solutions Team continued to generate
revenue through the sale of LED’s Energy Efficiency,
and Renewable Energy solutions, in response to
growing customer demand. The team was also able
to provide two additional services for customers:
maintenance of PV systems, and hurricane mitigation
(removal of solar panels). Energy Solutions also
demonstrated the feasibility of Solar Car Parks by
constructing two at our very own locations: at the
Head Office in New Kingston and at our Ruthven Road
Commercial Office.

During the year, the Company also made significant

headway in providing multiple channels for customers
to contact us. We launched the JPS Mobile App,
increased our customer engagement via Social Media,
and introduced Webchat on the JPS website. This
resulted in a 12% reduction in the number of calls
received, compared to 2015. At the same time, there
was a 23% increase in our social media fan base -
primarily due to the social media customer service. At
the end of the year, the company had have over
12,000 users of the JPS Mobile App, and more than
1,800 customers were served via Webchat, which
became fully operational in Q4.

A Solid Foundation

In summary, in 2016, JPS established a solid
foundation for national development by significantly
advancing the country’s fuel diversification agenda,
building out its smart-grid technology and developing
numerous customer solutions. With these innovations,
JPS is now being positioned as a best-in-class utility,
which will further enhance Jamaica’s attractiveness as
an option for investors. The Company is committed to
continuing its contribution to nation building both
through our operations, through the JPS Foundation
and our Community Renewal programme. JPS has
fully embraced our motto: “Do Power Differently” and
we are poised to take that idea even more forcefully
into 2017 as we continue to lead Jamaica’s energy
revolution.

A
W

Mr. Chang Sup Jo
Chairman

o %
Al

Ms. Kelly Tomblin
President & CEO
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P> Board of Directors LN

Tatsuya Ozono
Director

Seiji Kawamura
Director

Chang Sup Jo Ha Kyong Song
Chairman of the Board Director
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olin Williams Suzette Buchanan

Fitzroy Vidal

Hon. Charles Johnston, C.D Kengo Aoki

Alternate Director
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P> Executive Leadership Team |§

Kelly Tomblin
President and Chief Executive Officer
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é ary Barrow Sheree Martin
Chief Technology Officer Senior Vice President,
Energy Delivery

Joseph Williams Katherine P.C. Francis

Senior Vice President, Vice President,

Generation and Special Projects Legal and Compliance
General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary

-

Dan Theoc Keith Garvey

Chief Financial Officer Vice President,
Customer Service and
Communications
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Section of Bogue Plant and Operations
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>> Management Discussion and Analysis

Results of Operations
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

The Company earned operating revenues of $712.5
million for the year which represents a decline of $47.3
million or 6% relative to 2015, due primarily to the 17%
decrease in fuel costs recovered from customers offset
by a 4% increase in energy sales (3,179 GWh in 2016
as opposed to 3,071 GWh in 2015).

Cost of sales for the year was $427.8 million, which
reflected a decline of $45.8 million or 10% compared to
2015. This is mainly as a result of the reduction in the
cost of fuel and the ongoing efforts of the Company to
improve operational efficiency as measured by heat
rate. Actual production (net generation) for 2016 was
4,349 GWh as compared to 4,209 GWh in 2015
representing an increase of 3%. Due to the 4% increase
in energy sales previously mentioned, the Company was
able to benefit from a decrease in system losses over
the prior year, with losses in 2016 being 26.9% of net
generation as opposed to 27.0% for 2015.

Based on this performance, the Company has
experienced a reduction in Gross Profit of 0.5% with
2016 being $284.7 million as compared to $286.2
million in 2015.

During the year, there was a marginal increase in
operating expenses (excluding depreciation and
amortisation expenses) of $0.6 million, moving from
$142.1 million in the prior year to $142.7 million in 2016,
which is primarily due to an increase in third party
services and office and other expenses offset by
savings experienced in bad debt. As a result, earnings
before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
decreased by 1% to $142.0 million in 2016 from $144.1
million in 2015. Depreciation and amortisation expenses
increased over the prior year, to $77.6 million as
opposed to $57.9 million in 2015. This increase is
primarily as a result of the Company adjusting its
depreciation rates to bring them in line with the
Amended Electricty Licence which was issued January
27, 2016. The modification in rates resulted in an
acceleration in the depreciation and amortisation charge
for several of the Company’s assets

This has resulted in total operating expenditure of
$220.3 million being incurred in the current year as
compared to $200.0 million in 2015.

Net finance costs decreased by $2.7 million or 6% from
$42.5 million in 2015 to $39.8 million in the current year
mainly as a result of a reduction in interest expenses
and loan financing fees primarily due to a lower overall
debt portfolio as compared to the prior year.

Other income earned for the year increased from $2.4
million in 2015 to $10.4 million in 2016. This increase is
primarily as a result of project development fees and
increased sales of scrap during the year as well as a
reduction in the provisions made for certain expenses.
The Company also benefitted from a reduction in other
expenses from $15.3 million to $2.0 million, primarily as
a result of a reduction in provisions for restructuring
expenses and other costs made in 2015 which did not
recur in 2016.

Taxation expense for the current year was $$8.9 million
as compared $4.3 million in 2015. This was primarily
due to the improved profit performance and other tax
related adjustments which were made during the year.

Based on the foregoing, the Company has achieved a
net profit after tax of $24.1 million for 2016, representing
a $2.4 million decrease over the prior year. These profits
result in a return on equity of approximately 6.6% for
2016 which is a reduction over the 7.9% earned in 2015.
Liquidity

Cash inflows from operating activities decreased slightly
from $117.9 million in 2015 to $117.1 million in 2016.
These cash flows are derived principally from billings to
customers, which the company uses to meet its cash
needs for operating expenses, routine capital
expenditure, debt service obligations and shareholder
returns. These inflows from operating activities were
offset by the cash outflows from investing and financing
activities. Cash outflows from investing activities
decreased from $63.5 million in 2015 to $61.4 million in
2016. Cash outflows from financing activities decreased
from $56.6 million in 2015 to $52.7 million in 2015, due
to a reduction in financing costs and the level of new
debt entered into by the Company.
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>> Management Discussion and Analysis Contd

These cash flows resulted in an improvement in the
cash position over the year with net cash & cash
equivalents increasing from $5.6 million in 2015 to $8.7
million as at December 31, 2016.

Capital Investment

As in previous years, JPS has made significant
investments in the modernisation of its generation,
transmission & distribution assets. These investments
continue to outpace net income with capital expenditure
for 2016 and 2015 being $64.3 million and $68.7 million
respectively, compared to net income of $24.1 million
and $26.5 million respectively.

The Company has been able to maintain a strong
capital structure with total capitalisation, as measured
by Debt and Equity, totaling $764.3 million as at
December 31, 2016 representing a 2% increase over
the $750.8 million in the prior year. Based on the
Company’s continuing efforts in servicing its debt
obligation, the gearing ratio has reduced slightly to 45%
in 2015 from 47% in 2015. Interest cover also improved
slightly from 4.22 times for 2015 to 4.25 times for the
current year.

Risk Management - Overview

JPS has a comprehensive risk management framework
to monitor, evaluate and manage the principal risks
assumed in conducting its activities, which include
credit, liquidity, market and operational risks. Risk is
managed through a framework of principles,
organisational structures, and risk measurement and
monitoring activities that are aligned to the company’s
activities.

The Board of Directors, in managing the business of
the Company, oversees the Company's risk
management framework. Key management has
responsibility for monitoring the Company’s risk
management policies in their specified areas and report
quarterly to the Board of Directors on their activities.

The Company's risk management policies are
established to identify and analyse the risks faced by
the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls,
and to monitor risk and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions.

The Company, through training and management
standards and procedures, aims to develop a
disciplined and constructive control environment, in
which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if
a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the Company’s trade receivables, which is stated
net of an allowance for doubtful balances.

As part of its management of credit risk, the Company
requires account deposits from certain customers.
Additionally, management has processes in place for
the prompt disconnection of services to, and recovery
of amounts owed by defaulting customers.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment
losses that represents its best estimate of incurred
losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The
main component of this allowance is a loss component
that relates to individually significant exposures. The
loss allowance is determined based on historical
payment statistics for similar financial assets and an
assessment of the debtors’ ability to settle the debt.
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk, also referred to as funding risk, is the risk
that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising
funds to meet commitments associated with financial
instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an inability
to sell a financial asset quickly at, or close to, its
fair value. Prudent liquidity risk management
implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to its reputation.

Key management of the Company aims at maintaining
flexibility in funding by keeping lines of funding available
as well as by acquiring and maintaining prudent cash
resources in appropriate currencies.

JPS
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Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices,
such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and
equity prices will affect the value of the Company's
assets, the amount of its liabilities and/or the
Company's income. Market risk arises in the Company
due to fluctuations in the value of assets and liabilities.

The objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return on risk. The
nature of the Company's exposures to market risks and
its objectives, policies and processes for managing
these risks have not changed significantly over the prior
year. For each of the major components of market risk,
the Company has policies and procedures in place
which detail how each risk is managed and monitored.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market
interest rates. The Company contracts financial
liabilities at fixed or floating interest rates. These
primarily relate to loans, customer deposits, certain
trade payables and bank overdrafts.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates.

The Company incurs foreign currency risk primarily on
the settlement of accounts receivable, accounts
payable and borrowings that are denominated in a
currency other than the United States dollar.
The currencies giving rise to significant foreign currency
risk are the Jamaican dollar (J$) and the
Euro (€).

The Company manages foreign exchange exposure by
maintaining adequate liquid resources in appropriate
currencies and by managing the timing of payments on
foreign currency liabilities.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss
arising from a wide variety of causes associated with
the Company’s processes including regulatory risk,
personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from
external factors other than credit, market and liquidity
risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory
requirements, generally accepted standards of
corporate behaviour and force majeure events.

The Company's objective is to manage operational risk
s0 as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and
damage to its reputation with overall cost effectiveness
and to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative
and creativity. These risk management activities include:

+ the management and control of significant operational
risks by each department;

« the active involvement of an independent internal audit
department in assessing significant risks identified;

*the use of insurance to ensure that assets and
personnel are adequately covered

A critical tool used in the management of operational
risk is Insurance. The company ensures that its assets
and personnel are adequately covered through a variety
of policies, including personnel, property damage and
business interruption. The regulatory tariff mechanism
also contributes to the adequacy of our asset coverage
by means of provisions for damage to our transmission
and distribution assets and certain force majeure
occurrences.

JPS
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JPS Linesmen - Excellent performance at the International
Linesmen Rodeo in Kansas, USA
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P> Performance Highlights

Peclaration of Commissioning
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Prime Minister the Most Hon. Andrew Holness (centre) shares a photo moment with CEO of
New Fortress Energy, Wes Edens and JPS President & CEO, Kelly Tomblin, at the Declaration
of Commissioning of the newly converted Bogue Power Plant.

The Year of 2016 was dubbed internally, as the Year
of Breakthrough. This mantra became a guiding light
for members of the organization, and helped drive
many of the achievements seen across the Company
during the year. These included the Conversion of the
Bogue Power Plant to use Liquefied Natural Gas and
the introduction of LNG into the fuel mix in the
country. The organization also saw internal
improvements and strides, such as the island wide
rollout of the Pay As You Go (prepaid) service and
customer service improvements, among others.

Financial Performance

JPS ended 2016 with a Net Profit of $24.1 million,
which was $2.5 million (or 9%) below the profit
recorded for 2015. The decrease in profit is primarily
as a result of an increase in our operating expenses.

During the year, the Company incurred additional
depreciation charges of approximately $13.4 million,
as a result of changes in the rate of depreciation used
for certain assets held. The new Electricity Licence
issued in 2016 reduced the expected useful lives of
certain categories of our property, plant and
equipment and as a result the depreciation rates used
by the company were also modified to bring them in
line with these new rates which resulted in a

JPS
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P> Performance Highlights Contd

Chief Technology Officer, Gary Barrow, explains how the smart meter will empower customers,
as part of the development of a smarter grid. Listening intently are Director of Corporate
Communications, Winsome Callum (centre) and President & CEO, Kelly Tomblin.

significant accelerated depreciation charges for these
categories. Additionally, we also experienced an
increase in staff costs and other operating expenses.

Although energy sales (kWh) increased by
approximately 4% in 2016, resulting in increased
revenue of approximately $11.8 million, this was
offset by the removal of the Bogue Plant
Reconfiguration Fund (BPRF) ($12.5 million), resulting
in our non-fuel revenue being relatively flat between
2016 and 2015.

JPS Makes Fuel Diversification a Reality

It was years in coming, but in 2016 natural gas finally
arrived on the shores of Jamaica, and was officially
introduced into the nation’s fuel mix. The process
involved the entire JPS and saw both internal and
external partners aligning around the vision of fuel
diversification.

The journey to fuel diversification through natural gas
is a dream that Jamaica had pursed for more than a
decade - since the Bogue Combined Cycle Gas
Turbine facility was first built in 2003. Many
alternative fuels to oil were explored, including
Ethane, Propane, Compressed Natural Gas and
CGLs but in the end all were confident that Liquefied
Natural Gas (LNG), a commercially proven and tried
fuel, was the best choice in the journey to fuel
diversification.

The introduction of natural gas to Jamaica was easily
JPS’ biggest achievement in 2016. It represents a
significant milestone which sees approximately 10%
of our production now coming from a new source of
fuel (natural gas). There are several additional
economic benefits to be derived from having LNG in
Jamaica, including: LNG bunkering for ships, LNG
transshipment services for the Caribbean to support

JPS
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« 1,797 customers island wide
272 from Community Renewal Projects
209 Landlords

small scale deliveries and natural gas supplies for
industrial purposes (including the transport sector).
Jamaica is only the third country in the region to be
importing LNG. The significance of LNG was not lost
on the international community — Jamaica got a credit
rating upgrade from Moody’s shortly after this
accomplishment.

It is expected that in 2017, 12% of production at JPS
will come from natural gas and approximately 12%
from renewable energy sources as well.

Building a Smart Nation

In 2016, we took the first bold steps to create the
Caribbean’s first ‘smart city’ in New Kingston. In the
first phase of this initiative, the company started the
roll-out of smart meters in the commercial district,
and the replacement of streetlights to LED streetlights
with smart capabilities. As part of the ongoing roll-out
of the smart grid, JPS also deployed over 20,000
smart meters in communities islandwide, and
unveiled the country’s first smart house in Meadows
of Irvin in St James.

» 2S

Expansion of Prepaid Service

JPS continued to deliver on its mission to provide a
solution for every Jamaican in 2016. Our prepaid,
Pay-As-You-Go (PAYG) service, in particular, saw a
significant growth in popularity as an energy
management tool.

Jamaican customers now join millions in such
countries as the United Kingdom, South Africa,
Argentina, the United States and a number of
Caribbean islands, which offer pre-paid electricity
service.

The Pay As You Go service was first piloted in 2015,
with a small test group in Portmore, St. Catherine.
The pilot was extended to three parishes to allow for
testing of the technology and customer behavior.

Residential and small business customers who have
made the switch from post-paid to pre-paid, have
typically experienced savings of about 35% as a
result of being more aware of how their electricity is
being used in real time.

Persons who opt to go pre-paid have a Customer
Interface Unit installed in their homes, which will allow
them to top up credit and to see their available
balance. The Unit also signals when credit is running
low, so that customers will be able to top up on time.
Furthermore, customers in need of emergency top-
up may call the Customer Care Centre for an advance
on credit, making the product virtually risk free.
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P> Performance Highlights Contd

Education, Youth and Information Minister, Senator the Hon. Ruel Reid (centre), participates in the
symbolic handover of a cheque by the JPS Foundation to the Overseas Examinations Commission
(OEC) to cover examination fees for students sitting the Caribbean Secondary Education Certificate
(CSEC) Electrical and Electronic Technology test. Occasion was the launch of the JPS Foundation
CSEC Electrical and Electronic Technology Exam Fee Sponsorship Initiative at St. George’s College,
downtown Kingston on November 22. Others sharing the moment are JPS Foundation Manager,
Jacinth Morgan Collie (3rd left); JPS President and Chief Executive Officer, Kelly Tomblin (5th left);
JPS Foundation Chairman-elect and Company Vice President for Customer Service and
Communication, Keith Garvey (centre back); OEC Deputy Director, Sharon Burnett (5th right);
Permanent Secretary in the Ministry of Education, Youth and Information, Dean-Roy Bernard (4th right)
and some of the students who will benefit from the initiative.

Lighting the Way for Skills Training in High Schools

Through the JPS Foundation, we continued to make
our mark on education in Jamaica. In 2016, we
entered into an agreement with the Ministry of
Education, Youth and Information and the Overseas
Examination Commission (OEC), to cover the cost of
examination fees for students sitting the Electrical
and Electronic Technology exams for the Caribbean
Secondary Examinations Council (CSEC). The
initiative  supports the Education Ministry’s
requirement to have each student receive skill based
knowledge or certification, by the time they leave high
school. The JPS Foundation also continued its work
in Energy Education, Youth Development and general
Community Outreach.

Recognition at Home and Abroad

JPS received a number of recognitions in 2016.
The President & CEO Kelly Tomblin, won the CEO
of the Year Award at the 2016 Platts Global Energy
Awards, held in New York, USA. JPS was also a
finalist - for the Energy Company of the Year
Award.The CEO was the sole female in an
outstanding line-up of finalists from around the world,
including India, China, Thailand, UK and
the USA.

Locally, The Jamaica Institute of Engineers awarded
the Company the Best Project of the Year Award, for
the Bogue Conversion Project, undertaken earlier in
the year. The organization was also selected for the
Project Management Global Institute (PMGI)
Exemplary Employer Awards. Congratulations also
came in from the Social Development Commission,
in recognition of our St. Ann Team, which was
awarded the "2016 Spirit of the Community Award,”
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(I-r) JPS Customer Experience Officer, Allison Haynes Laraque; JPS Head of Customer Experience,

Gina Tomlinson-Williams; C&W Business, Flow’s Marketing Manager, Michelle Clunie; JPS Manager,

Customer Care Centre, Shanique Donaldson-Mclntosh, pause for a snap shot after JPS receives the
PSOJ/Jamaica Customer Service Association’s Service Excellence Award for Quality Monitoring.

for Unwavering Support of Programmes and Projects
that Foster Social Protection and Community
Development.

The Company also received special recognition at the
Montego Bay Chamber of Commerce & Industry
Annual Awards event — copping the New Investment
Business Development & Expansion Award, for JPS’
role in bringing gas to Jamaica, and the conversion
of the Bogue Power Station to operate on natural gas.
Additionally, Director for Region West, T’Shura Gibbs,
was presented with the Outstanding Customer
Service Vocation Award.

JPS also received the PSOJ/JaCSA Service
Excellence Award for Quality Monitoring. This is the
first award JPS has ever won for Customer Service,
and stands as a major breakthrough for the company
and the perception of our partners and stakeholders.
The Company was also selected for the Gleaner
Honour Award for its strides in Science and
Technology in 2016.
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P> Performance Highlights Contd

Brannen McElmurray; JPS President & CEO, Kelly Tomblin; Prime Minister of Jamaica, the Most Hon.
Andrew Holness; Minister of Science, Energy and Technology, Dr. The Hon. Andrew Wheatley;
Permanent Secretary in the Ministry of Science, Energy and Technology, Hillary Alexander; and

President of New Fortress Energy, Wes Edens, pause for a moment at the newly constructed LNG
Terminal in Montego Bay, St. James.

Aerial View of the newly constructed LNG Terminal and the Ship ‘Anthony Veder’, which brought Natural
Gas to the island. The terminal is located in Montego Bay, St. James.
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Section of the JPS Magotty Hydro Dam
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P> Directors’ Report

The Directors of the Jamaica Public Service Company Limited submit herewith their Annual Report with the Audited
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2016:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
(Twelve months) (Twelve months)

Us$’000 US$’000
OPERATING REVENUES
Profit before Taxation 32,992 30,829
Taxation (expense) (8,941) (4,322)
Net Profit attributable to shareholders 24,051 26,507
Dividends on Preference Shares:
- Classes ‘B’ through ‘E’ 1.3 1.4
- Class ‘F’ 1,751 2,339
- Class ‘G’ 1,065 0
Dividends on Ordinary Shares 0 0

Dividends:

The dividends for the year on the preference shares for Classes B-E have been paid in full; dividends for the Class
F preference shares have all been paid in full except for the fourth (4th) quarter of 2016 which was paid on March
24, 2017; no dividends were declared or paid on the ordinary stocks and shares for the year 2016.

The Class G Redeemable Preference Shares issued to the Accountant General’s Department valued at
US$999,084.00 and to MaruEnergy JPSCo |, SRL valued at US$2,000,458 were redeemed for payment arrears or
accruals of the cumulative preferential dividends.

Auditors:
In accordance with Section 154 of the Companies Act, a resolution proposing the appointment of the Auditors and
for the Directors to fix the Auditors’ remuneration will be put to the Annual General Meeting.

Directors:

Messrs. Geun Tae Kim, Gordon Shirley and Evan Duggan resigned from the Board during the year under review.
The Board wishes to express its sincere appreciation to Messrs. Kim, Shirley and Duggan for their sterling
contribution to the Company during their tenure on the Board.

Consequent on the resignation of Mr. Chang Sup Jo as Chairman (he remains a director of the Board), Mr. Seiji
Kawamura was appointed Chairman effective April 13, 2017.

In accordance with Articles 86 and 123 of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, Messrs. Ha Kyoung Song,
Masao Imazato, Colin Williams, Mo Majeed and Ms. Suzette Buchanan, having been appointed to the Board since
the last Annual General Meeting shall cease to hold office and being eligible, offer themselves for election.

The Directors wish to thank the Management and staff of the Company for their performance during the year under
review.
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P> Corporate Data

Registrar

Cumulative Preference Shares

and Ordinary Stock & Shares

Jamaica Central Securities Depository Limited
40 Harbour Street, Kingston

Jamaica WI

Registered Office
6 Knutsford Boulevard, Kingston 5, Jamaica, W.I.

Auditors
KPMG
6 Duke Street, Kingston, Jamaica, W.I.

Attorneys-at-Law
Livingston Alexander & Levy
72 Harbour Street, Kingston

Clinton Hart & Co.
Attorneys-at-Law
58 Duke Street, Kingston

Hylton Powell
Attorneys-at-Law
11a Oxford Road, Kingston 5

Nunes Scholefield Deleon & Co.
6a Holborn Road, Kingston 5

Symone Mayhew
Attorney-at-Law
17 Herb McKinley Drive, Kingston 6

Bogue at twilight
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Bankers

National Commercial Bank Jamaica Limited
3rd Floor, 32 Trafalgar Road

Kingston 10, Jamaica, W.L.

Bank of Nova Scotia Jamaica Limited
ScotiaBank Centre

Cnr Duke & Pt Royal Streets
Kingston, Jamaica, W.I.

CIBC First Caribbean International
Bank Jamaica Limited

23 -27 Knutsford Boulevard
Kingston 5

Citibank, N.A.
63 Knutsford Boulevard
Kingston 5

JPS

126 |



JPS Head Office

JPS
JAMAICA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2016

1271




>>Ten Largest Shareholders’ Listings
As At December 31, 2016

JPS Preference B Shares (7%)

Rank Name of Shareholder No. of Units
1 Philip Harvey-Lewis 130,666
2 Security Brokers Limited 81,005
3 MF&G Trust and Finance Ltd-A/C 57 41,000
4 Everard Smith/Alain Smith 38,285
5 Jamaica Mutual Life Assurance Company 16,567
6 Crown Life Insurance Company 10,000
7 John Headcock 7,410
8 National Utility Fund 5,600
9 Kimberly Burrowes 5,597
10 Estate George H Scott 5,000

JPS Preference C Shares (5%)

Rank Name of Shareholder No. of Units
1 Security Brokers Limited 6,917
2 Philip Harvey-Lewis 6,728
3 Everard Smith 5,371
4 Renata Headcock 4,460
5 Jamaica Mutual Life Assurance Company 3,610
6 Herma Sassoon (Deceased) 1,900
7 MF&G Trust & Finance Ltd- A/C 57 1,835
8 Uraine Ferro 1,800
9 Prudential Stockbrokers Ltd 1,628
10 Buck Security Brokers Ltd 1,566

JPS Preference D Shares (5%)

Rank Name of Shareholder No. of Units
1 Philip Harvey-Lewis 82,817
2 Everard Smith 83,798
3 MF&G Finance Ltd- A/C 57 71,921
4 Security Brokers Ltd. 64,470
5 Jamaica Mutual Life Assurance Society 52,795
6 Crown Life Insurance Company Ltd 20,000
7 Grethel Forrester-Benjamin 20,000
8 Prudential Stock Brokers Ltd 18,185
9 Ronald W. Kuper 13,600
10 Jamaica Mutual Life Assurance Society 9,605
11 Unranie Ferro 9,202
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JPS Preference E Shares (6%)

Rank Name of Shareholder No. of Units
1 Everard Smith 77,206
2 MF&G Trust & Finance Ltd- A/C 57 36,660
3 Security Brokers Ltd 30,000
4 Susan Headcock 30,000
5 Jamaica Mutual Life Association Staff S/A Fund 11,060
6 Field Nominees Limited 10,000
7 Jamaica Mutual Life Assurance Society 8,250
8 Estate Charles O. Edwards (Deceased) 5,000
9 Imperial Optical Company (W) Ltd 5,000
10 Berkeley Properties Ltd 3,613
11 Winston G. Headcock 3,400
12 Monica Powell 3,300
Rank Name of Shareholder No. of Units
1 National Insurance Fund 350,000
2 P.A.M. LTD - JPS Employees Superannuation 324,832
Fund
3 Grace Kennedy Limited Pension Fund 250,000
4 PAM — Pooled Equity Fund 192,931
5 NCB Insurance Company Limited 149,900
6 ATL Group Pension Fund Trustee Nominee 100,000
Limited
7 JCSD Trustee Services Ltd — Sigma Solution 98,644
8 Sagicor Life Jamaica Limited 98,643
9 SJIML A/C 3119 98,137
10 Sagicor Pooled Foreign Currency Fund 78,914
Rank Name of Shareholder No. of Units
1 EWP (Barbados) 1 SRL 155,366,792
2 Maruenergy JPSCO 1, SRL 155,366,792
3 National Investment Bank of Jamaica Ltd 2,183,237
4 R.S Gamble and Son Ltd 108,139
5 Faith A. Myers 74,394
6 Melle Marguerite Simard (Deceased) 59,514
7 Frank Renfrette 45,462
8 John George 43,396
9 Agnes Theresa Fong Yee 31,410
10 Renee Rosier Joel 29,757

JPS Ordinary Shares

Rank Name of Shareholder No. of Units
1 EWP (Barbados) 1 SRL 8,575,911,306
2 Maruenergy JPSCO 1, SRL 8,575,911,306
3 Accountant General 2,386,573,897
4 Accountant General 1,974,065,546
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Hunts Bay Employee on the Job
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P> Corporate Governance

Good Corporate Governance is fundamental to the
core values, culture and business practices of
Jamaica Public Service Company Limited (JPS). The
Directors of Board of JPS are fully cognizant of their
legal and corporate governance responsibilities and
they undertake these with honesty, probity and
integrity. The Board works together with
Management to set the "tone at the top" for all
employees to emulate particularly as it pertains to
doing the right thing in our business. The Board
through its work and the work of its Committees
monitor and ensure the effectiveness of the
Company’s corporate governance practices and
approves changes, as needed.

For JPS, compliance is a key tenet of its strategic risk
management framework as risk management is the
basis of any successful entity and is the foundation
upon which JPS must continue to grow as a true first
class corporate brand fulfilling its Vision and Mission
of providing a solution for every Jamaica for the
growth and prosperity of Jamaica. JPS has
established corporate governance principles which
guide management decisions as well as its core
system of processes and procedures by which all
employee decisions and actions must be carried out.
The Board has responsibility, along with the President
and her Executive Leadership Team, for managing the
Company’s day to day operations, with material
issues going before the Board for consideration and
decision. Management is responsible for the
execution of an agreed upon strategy and for all
operational matters. Management is also supported
in its work by Committees of the Board.

The Company’s corporate governance framework is
based on its constitutive documents and best
practice. The Board, members of the Executive and
the Legal & Compliance Division work together to
ensure that the Company’s governance practices are
consistent and compliant with all applicable
legislation, regulations, standards and codes.

Our Corporate Governance Guidelines are available
on our website at: www.myjpsco.com.

Board Oversight

The Board of Directors is committed to and is
ultimately accountable for enhancing stakeholder
value by providing an advisory role in consultation
with management regarding the strategic and
operational direction of the company. In addition, the
Board provides oversight in monitoring company
performance. The responsibilities of the Board are
separate and distinct from those of management.

The Board meets approximately once per quarter.
However special meetings are convened as needed
especially when urgent and critical issues are required
to be addressed between scheduled meetings. From
time to time, members of the Board regularly meet
with key members of the senior management team to
consider critical financial issues and matters of
strategic importance to the Company.

Composition of the Board

The Company’s Directors have diverse skill sets,
strong experience and varied backgrounds which
include local and international experience in
engineering, finance and audit, strategic
management, banking, human resources, education,
and risk management. JPS Directors take care in
ensuring that decisions are made after fulsome
discussion and careful deliberation of all relevant
information.
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P> Corporate Governance Contd

THE TABLE BELOW HIGHLIGHTS THE RESPECTIVE SKILLS SETS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

BOARD EXPERTISE GENERAL FINANCE & STRATEGIC BANKING ENGINEERING H.R. & LEGAL Risk
MANAGEMENT AuDIT MANAGEMENT EDUCATION MANAGEMENT

Chang Sup Jo v v

Tatsuya Ozono v v v v v

Seiji Kawamura v v v

Minna Israel v v v v/

Prof. Evan Duggan v v v

Prof. Gordon Shirley 4 v v Ve v e e v

Charles Johnston 4 v/ 4 4 Ve v

Geun Tae Kim 4 v v/ v

Fitzroy Vidal v/ v v

Dong Uk Kim

(Alternate Director) v v

Kengo Aoki

(Alternate Director) v 4 4

Colin Williams 4 v/ v

Suzette Buchanan v v

As at December 31, 2016, the Board comprised of nine (9) directors and two (2) alternate directors and is chaired
by Mr. Chang Sup Jo, a representative from one of our majority shareholders, EWP (Barbados) 1 Srl. Two (2) of
our nine (9) directors are independent of the Company. The Board is represented as follows:

* Three (3) directors represent MaruEnergy JPSCO I, Srl
« Three (3) directors represent EWP (Barbados) 1 Srl
* Three (3) directors represent the Government of Jamaica

| CURRENT DIRECTORS |
Seiji Kawamura— Chairman!
Chang Sup Jo
Masao Imazato?
Minna Israel (Independent Director)
Colin Williams 3
Suzette Buchanan*
Charles Johnston (Independent Director)
Ha Kyoung Song®
Fitzroy Vidal
Dong Uk Kim (Alternate Director)
Kengo Aoki (Alternate Director)
Mo Majeed (Alternate Director)®
Tatsuya Ozono’

1 Appointed April 13, 2017
2 Appointed April 13,2017
3 Appointed July 22, 2016
4 Appointed July 22, 2016
> Appointed July 22, 2016
¢ Appointed April 13,2017
7 Resigned April 3, 2017
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The only director compensation paid is to non-
shareholder members of the Board who receive a
fixed amount equivalent to US$1,000 for attendance
at each Board or Committee meeting, and
any other meeting requiring a director’s
attendance. Shareholder representatives receive no
compensation.

Nomination, Appointment, Term, Election and
Retirement of Directors

The Company is satisfied that the current slate of
Directors have the appropriate skills, experience and
capabilities to meet the challenges faced by the
Company. In selecting members of the Board,
consideration of guidelines similar to those
recommended by the Private Sector Organization of
Jamaica is taken into account. All Directors
automatically retire from the Board at the end of a
three-year appointment. Each year at the Annual
General Meeting, the Board recommends and the
shareholders elect the retiring directors or new
directors as the case may be in accordance with the
Company'’s Articles of Incorporation. There are no
Executive Directors on the Board of JPS.

Director Orientation and Training Opportunities

Directors are afforded continuous education about
the Company, technological developments in the
electricity industry, new energy products and
business opportunities in the Energy Sector. All
Directors have access to and are encouraged to
engage the Chairman, the President & Chief
Executive Officer and key members of the Executive
Team. Members of the Executive Leadership team
often present to the Board not only on the Company’s
operations but also on a variety of topics in an effort
to keep Directors apprised of developments in the
energy sector. This affords Directors, an opportunity
to pose questions to and interact with senior
management on key topics.

Conflicts of Interest

In adherence to the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation, various statutory requirements on the
disclosure of Directors’ interest as well as the
Company’s Code of Ethics, members of the Board
who have interest in proposals being considered by
the Board, including where such interest arises
through close family members, must make a
declaration to that effect. Directors have the same
obligation as employees to abide by all tenets of the
Company’s Code of Ethics and must complete the
Annual Code of Ethics Questionnaire.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Audit Committee®

JPS has an established Audit Committee, the primary
responsibilities of which are to assist the Board of
Directors in carrying out its duties as they relate to the
organization’s accounting policies, internal controls
and financial reporting practices. In general, the
Committee exercises its responsibility in three
important areas:

* Financial Reporting

« Governance of Internal Controls and
Accounting Policies

+ Risk Management in the Company

Members of the Audit Committee as at December
31,2016 are:

= Ms. Minna Israel - Chairman (Independent)
= Mr. Colin Williams (Independent)
= Mr. Ha Kyoung Song

8 Messrs. Evan Duggan and Geun Tae Kim resigned from the Audit Committee on July 22, 2016 and July 31, 2016 respectively. Consequent
on their resignation from the Board as both were leaving the jurisdiction, Messrs. Colin Williams and Ha Kyoung Song were appointed on
July 22, 2016.
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P> Corporate Governance Contd

Other invitees to the Committee’s meeting include:
= Mr. Chang Sup Jo - JPS Board Chairman

= Mrs. Kelly Tomblin — President & CEO and/or
other executives or managers as are required.

= Mrs. Leisa Batiste-White — Head-Internal Audit

= Ms. Katherine P.C. Francis — Corporate
Secretary/Ms. Kim Robinson — Assistant
Secretary

= Representatives of the Company’s external
auditor attend Committee meetings as needed.

The Terms of Reference or Charter of the Company’s
Audit Committee are reviewed by the Committee and
upon recommendation, approved by the Board. The
Charter is reviewed from time to time and where
appropriate may be revised by the Board. The
Committee has oversight responsibility for the
Company specifically in relation to the following
areas:

* The Integrity of the financial reporting of the
Company and system of internal controls

» Ensuring compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements

* The performance of the internal Audit and
external auditors

The Audit Committee reviewed and recommended for
approval (where relevant) the following items during
the year:

« Management accounts for the Company

+ Audited Financial Statements

* Engagement Letter of the External Auditors
* External Audit Fees

* Internal Audit Reports

* Regulatory Examination Reports and
Management Response

+ Connected Party list and transactions

+ Compliance Reports

* Management Letter from the External Auditor.
Operations Committee®

The Board established an Operations Committee the
primary responsibility of which is to assist the Board
of Directors in the performance of its functions and to
provide technical advice and strategic guidance to
Management with respect to the day-to-day
operations of the Company subject to, of course, the
powers, authority, direction and control of the Board.

The establishment of the Operations Committees is
consistent with current corporate board practices in
Jamaica. This is an efficient approach to the conduct
of business as it facilitates a thorough examination of
essential details by the Committee, who can then
effectively address critical operational issues that may
arise at Board meetings.

Members of the Operations Committee as at
December 31, 2016 are:

= Mr. Tatsuya Ozono (Chairman)
= Mr. Ha Kyoung Song

= Mr. Kengo Aoki

= Mr. Fitzroy Vidal

= Prof. Audley Darmand
(Shareholder Representative)

= Mr. Hyung Soo Kim
(Shareholder Representative)

Other invitees to the Committee’s meeting include:
= Mrs. Kelly Tomblin — President & CEO

= Ms. Katherine P.C. Francis —-Corporate
Secretary

= Members of the Executive Leadership Team

9Messrs. Geun Tae Kim and Young Sung Park resigned from the Operations Committee effective July 31, 2016 and March 17, 2016

respectively. Consequent on their resignation from the Board as both were leaving the jurisdiction, Messrs. Colin Williams, Ha Kyoung Song
and Mr. Hyung Soo Kim were appointed on July 22, 2016 and March 30, 2016, respectively.
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THE TABLE BELOW HIGHLIGHTS THE ATTENDANCE RECORD OF BOARD MEMBERS AT MEETINGS DURING
THE YEAR 2016:

TOTAL NUMBER OF MEETINGS HELD
Chang Sup Jo (Chairman)
Tatsuya Ozono

Geun Tae Kim*

Ha Kyoung Song**

Seiji Kawamura***

Charles Johnston

Minna Israel 1
Prof. Gordon Shirley****
Prof. Evan Duggan****

Fitzroy Vidal 1
Suzette Buchanan*****
Colin Williamsg*****
Kengo Aoki (Alternate Director) 1
Dong Uk Kim (Alternate Director)***

*resigned July 31, 2016

**appointed July 31, 2016

*** resident overseas

****resigned July 22, 2016
***** appointed July 22, 2016
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P> Corporate Compliance-

JPS Code Of Ethics & Business Conduct

The Company has in place a Code of Ethics and
Business Conduct, which guides employees in the
right way to do business at JPS. It is a core
component of the Company’s Compliance
Programme, which endeavours to ensure that
employees work in accordance with principles of
good corporate governance. The Code also
specifically addresses the issues of sexual
harassment, the Protected Disclosure or ‘Whistle
Blower’ Legislation and the Company’s attendant
policies. In order to foster the confidence of its
shareholders, employees, investors and the general
public, it goes beyond the legal and regulatory
framework in Jamaica and reflects internationally
recognised principles and practices. In addition, the
Company provides employees with a Code of Ethics
& Business Conduct Questionnaire, which is
completed by employees on a yearly basis and there
is also a Declaration of Interest Form for persons to
disclose any potential or actual conflict of interest.
The Company regularly reviews and updates its Code
of Conduct confirming its commitment to
demonstrably lead and promote good corporate
governance and the highest standards of ethical and
business conduct.

The Board of Directors, the management and all
employees of the Company are required to observe
the Company’s Code of Ethics and Business Conduct
and in this regard, annual certification of due
compliance is required and this is achieved through
the annual Questionnaire. The Code of Ethics and
Business Conduct provides guidance on key topics
of business ethics including but not limited to:

* Guidelines on how to avoid conflicts of
interest

» Guidelines on how to conduct business
honestly and with integrity

+ Keeping the Company’s transactions,
communications and information accurate,
confidential and secure and all customers’
safe; and

*The need to treat persons fairly and
equitably — whether customers, suppliers,
employees or others who deal with the
Company.

Although the Code provides standards of conduct for
many situations, it does not cover all the possible
situations that may arise. Accordingly, all
stakeholders are expected to conduct themselves in
accordance with their legal responsibilities and in a
manner consistent with the spirit and letter of this
Code and avoid even the perception of improper
behaviour

Management

As regards the Management of the Company, the
Majority Shareholders select the President & Chief
Executive Officer in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation and they conduct the
performance review of the President. Members of the
management team are selected by the President &
CEO in conjunction with the Board and persons with
a high standard of expertise and significant
experience in the particular area are sought and
engaged.
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P> Operational Statistics

Dec-31-16 Dec-31-15 Dec-31-14 Dec-31-13 Dec-31-12
OPERATING REVENUES ($000's)
Residential 283,459 286,954 372,909 387,731 406,752
Commercial & Industrial (Sml.) 304,727 335,472 456,977 497,543 512,481
Commercial & Industrial (Lge.) 104,136 115,543 167,650 185,760 192,958
Other 20,212 21,850 25,703 28,350 29,404
TOTAL 712,534 759,819 1,023,240 1,099,383 1,141,595
AVERAGE NO. OF CUSTOMERS
Residential 564,242 536,462 531,363 541,691 531,827
Commercial & Industrial (Sml.) 66,750 62,517 62,294 64,559 63,740
Commercial & Industrial (Lge.) 157 150 150 150 151
Other 419 401 389 254 253
TOTAL 631,568 599,530 594,196 606,654 595,971
NET GENERATION AND PURCHASES (MWh)
Steam & Slow Speed Diesel 1,668,268 1,530,023 1,460,626 1,499,305 | 1,500,497
Hydro 118,893 128,951 135,956 123,715 150,689
Gas Turbines 64,386 64,655 84,495 103,632 164,733
Combined Cycle Plant 705,634 806,279 769,622 615,502 777,670
Purchases 1,792,097 1,679,413 1,656,758 1,799,490 1,542,330
TOTAL 4,349,278 4,209,321 4,107,457 4,141,644 | 4,135,919
Losses & Unaccounted for (MWh) 1,169,970 1,137,973 1,094,478 1,071,955 [ 1,001,953
Systems losses as a percentage of Net Generation 26.9% 27.0% 26.6% 25.9% 24.2%
Heat Rate (Kj/kWh) 9,554 9,591 9,625 9,884 9,965
Heat Rate JPS Thermal (Kj/kWh) 11,571 11,333 10,822 11,433 11,245
ENERGY SALES (MWH)
Residential 1,077,148 1,016,428 981,730 996,429 1,035,377
Commercial & Industrial (Sml.) 1,380,791 1,360,131 1,347,514 1,366,797 | 1,383,296
Commercial & Industrial (Lge.) 625,219 602,618 589,236 605,402 615,314
Other 96,150 92,172 94,499 101,060 99,979
TOTAL 3,179,308 3,071,349 3,012,979 3,069,688 3,133,966
AVERAGE USE & REVENUE per residential customer
Annualized kWh Consumption/Customer 1,909 1,895 1,848 1,839 1,947
Annualized Revenues/Customer 502 535 702 716 765
U.S Dollars per kWh 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4
Average billing exchange rate for period 125.10 117.00 110.85 100.14 88.70
U.S. Cents per kWh 26.32 28.23 37.98 38.91 39.29
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P> Key Performance Indicators
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Key Performance Indicators
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p> Key Performance Indicators
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Key Performance Indicators
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KPMG'

KPMG

Chartered Accountants
PO. Box 78

& Duke Stree:

Kingsten

Jarmaica, Wl

+1 (876) 922 6640
firmmail@kpmg.com.m

INDEFENGENT AUDITORS REFCRT

Tathe Members of
JAMAICA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Ooimon

We bave audited the financial statements of Jamaica Public Service Compan
J

Lirruted {"the company ™), set oul on paces 52 to 106, which comprise tha

prary ;

staternant of financial position as at December 31, 2018, the statements of

profit or loss and ¢ther comprehensive income, changes n equity and cash

flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprsing sicnificant accounting

poiicies and other explanatory information,

I our cpinicn, the accompanying financial statements give a true and Tair view
of the financial position of the company as al December 31, 2018, and of its
financial performance and cash fiows for the year than ended in accordance with
internationst Financisl Repoarting Stardards (IFRS) and the Jamaican Companies
fats

Basis for Coiman

\We conducted our audi in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
HSAs), Our responsibilities under those standards are Turther describied in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Einancizl Stataments section of our
reporl. We are ndependent of the company 0 accordance with the International
Ethics Standsards Beard for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professicnal
Arvcountants [|ESBA Codel, and we nave Tulfilled our other ethical raspensitiities
in accordance with the 1IESBA Code We belisve that the audit evidence wa have
chtainad s sutficient ang appropriate o provide 3 basis for our opinicn,

F: Terim Harchs

Bt
KPS, @ Jemdean parmatsp v d ot Bin o e SRR rmeaters of idede mamibe Firs Narnen 0. Mairdeed
P Teied with EFRAE I nernatia el Conpeah vis T ERmAl Trlsmalonal® | A S sy Mgzl F. Cramasrs
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INDEPENDENT AUDITSRS REPORT (CONTINLUED)

Tothe Mermbers of
JAMAICA FUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Koy Audit Matters

key audit mmatters are those matiers that, in our professional judgment, were of
miost significance i our ausit of the financial statements of the currant period,
These matters ware addreszed in the context o ow audit of the financial
statements as a whaole, and in forming our oginion therecn, ang we do not
provicde a sepasale opinien on these mattars,

Recognition of accelerated How the matter was addressed in
depreciation on certain categories  our audit
of property, plant & egquipment

During the year, the company Char sudit procedures inresponse o
accounted for accelerated this matter, inciuced:

deprecation of $13.40M as a rasulf
of revisions to the estimate of useful
life of some categores of s assets,
The adjustment s sonsidersd
matenal and includes significant

e Azzassing the reasoratleness of
the basis of the changs in the
estimate of useful life recorded
by mmanagemeant by,

managament judgmeant in = comparing the revised
determining the ramaining usatul life estimate of useful life for each
af the affected assats category of property, plant &

equipment against estimates
Utlised by sirmilar entitizs for
those types of assais.

s |nspecting evdencerelating 1o
thz tmirg of replacerments
and upgrades for assets held
within the various categorias.

s lesting the comgieienass of the
azsets included in the calodlation
by resdenng the pror year fixed
asset register in cenmunction with
that of the currant yaar 1o
asceran at all assets in the
affectad categories were
ncluded,

o [valuanng the rezscnableness of
the armount of the adjustment oy
wigtting the rathematical
dccuracy of the calcuation,
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IMDEPEMDENT ALDITORE REPGRT [CONTINUED)

To 1ne Members of

JAMAICA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY LIMITEE

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Auait Matters feontinuea)

Recoverability of trade
receivables

Theg company has significant
overdus baances with governmert
and residential customears, Thers s
significant judgment imvolved in
deterrmining the levels of sllowance
for impairmert on thess balances,
because of the uncartainty involved
imssEtimating the timing and amount
of furure sollections,

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

Ciur audit procedures in response to

this mattar, included:

»  Tastng tha company's manual
and autormated controls over the
recording 2nd ageing of
recaivables

e Testing subsequent recapis for

selecled custormer acoounts,

= Challenging the collection rates

uzed by managemant in
determining its estimate by
1esting histercal collection
exgeriance and performing an
infapandent caculation of thess
ratgs,

s Evaluatng the adeguacy of the

alleeanee for impairment
recognissd in respect of the
company's racenables by
testing the undeslying data used
and re-peromming the

calculation,
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MOEPENDENT ALDITORS REPCGRT (CONTINLIED]

To e Members o
LI

JAMAICA PUS

CSEBVICE COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters fcontmued)

Revenue recognition - unbilled
revenue

The company recogrises revenue
as slectricity is delverad to itz
customer. Management estimates
energy consurmnption between the
date of the last matar reading ann
the end of tha reporting period.
Cetaled financial models uiilising
astimates of the electricity and fuel
consumption of the comoany's
custorners and applicable tarift rates
are used in determiring the
astimaled unbilled revenue.

The matter involves signiticant
managemeant juogmeant to astimate
the custormier eleciriciny and fual
consumption tetween the |35t
rmetar reading date and the end o
the reporting period

Other Informmaton

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

Dur audit procedures in response to
this matter, included:

e Testing the company s key
controls over the determination
of the estimate of unbdled
revenie

e Assessing ne 2dequacy of the
company's unhilled revenue
madel by companng it agsimst
industry norrrs and ragulatany
reguiremeants,

»  Testing the assumptions used in
determining the ssumate by,

*  Testing the vclurme data; and

*  Comparng the plices applec
by maragement o actus
fuel and indepencent power
Brovicars costs incurmes,

» Performing an indepandent
calcutation ¢f the estimale of
vniiled revenues on a meter
read cyicle basis, and comparnng
aur results to management’s
reported amount

hWanagement is respansible for the gther information, The cther information
comprises the information ingludad in the annual report but doas not include the
finangial statemerts and our auditars' report thereon, The annual repart s
expecied to e made avaiable to us after the date of this suditors’ repor:,
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INGEPEMDENT AUDITORS” REFORT (CONTINUED)

To tha Members of
JAMAICA PUBLIC BERVICE COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements [continued)
Mther information feontinucd)

Cur opinion ar the financial staterrents does notl cover the other informatan
and we will not exprass any form of 2ssurance conclusion thereon

n connecion with ouwr audit of the financial statements, our responsionty s to
read the other information identfied above when 11 becomes avalatle and, in
doing 50, consider whather the other informaticn is matenally inconsistent with
the firancial staterments or our knowlsdge obtzined 0 the audi, or omhenwise
dpiears 10 be matenally misstated,

Whern we read the annual report, it we conclude that thers is a matenal
mizstatement tharain, we are required o communicate the matter 1o those
cnarged with governance,

Hesponsibdilies of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financal Statomeanis

Managemeart is resconsible for the proparation of tinancial statermcnts thas give
a true and fair view in accordance with IFRS and the Jamaican Companies Act,
and for such internal contrel 85 management delenmimes (2 neceasany to anable
the preparstion of fingncial statemenrts that zre free from material misstatement,
wihethear dua to fraud cr arror

In preparing the fingncial statements, management i@ respersible for assessing
ihe company's ability 1o continue 28 a going sancern, disclosng, as applicans,
miatters ralzted 1o going cancern a@nd using the going concem basis of
acoounting unless managermeant either intends 1o liguidate the company or 1o
cease operations, o has no raalistic allernative bul 1o.do S,

The Bosrd of Directors 12 responsicle for ovarsesing the company’s financia
reparting process,

Auditors’ Responsibilitiag for the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Dur ebjectives are Lo chitain regsonable assurance about whether the financial
staternents as a whole are free from matenal messtaternent whether due to
fraud or error, and loassue an auditers' report that includes our epinion
Seasonzble assurance is a high level of assurarce, bul is not & guarantes that an
audil concucted in accordance wilh 1545 will shwavys detect a malanal
misstatament whan it exisis
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MOEFEMDENT AUCITORS' REPCRT (CONTINUED)

To the Meminers of
JAMAICA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements [continued)
Audirors’ Responsibitties for the Audit.of the Financial Statements fcontinueo)

Misstaternerts can ariss from fraud or error and are corsiderec materizl i,
indwidually o in the aggregate, they could reascnably be expecled 1 influerce
the aconommic decisions of users teken an the casis of thase financial
statemeants,

A funther descnpbon of our responsibilizes for 1he audit of the Tinancial
staterments is included in the Appendix 1o this auditors’ report, This
descripton, which s located 21 pages b0-51, forms part of our aucitors'
report

Report on additional matters as required by the Jamaican Companies Act

W have obtained 21 the infarmation and exglanations which, 1o the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary tor the purposas of our sudit.

If our apinicn, proper-accousting records have Baen maintainad, sofaras
anpears from our examination of these records, and the financial statemeants,
which are in agreement therewith, giva tha information required by the Jamaican
Companies &ctin the marnes reguired.

The orincipal on the audit resulting in this independent auditars’ report 15 5andma
Edhwards.

K P&

Chartzred Accountants
kingsion, Jamaics

March 28, 2017
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>>
KPMG)

INDEFEMDENT AUDITORE' REPCAT CONTINLUED)

T tha Membears of
JAMAITA PUBLIC SEBVICE COMPANY LIMITED

Appendix to the Independent Auditors’ report

&8 part of an audit in accordance with [SAs, we exercise professional judgment
and mainizin professional skepticism throughout the sucit. We alsa

statements, whethe: dueg to fraud or gmror, design and perform audit
procedures responsive 1o those risks, ana obtain avdit evidence that is
zufficient and appropriate 10 provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of "ot
detecting a material missmatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from arror, as frauc may invalve collugion, forgery, intenticnal
Dmissong; Misrepresentations, or the override ¢f internal centrol;

s Oblain an understanding of intarral control relevant to the sudit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate n the clireumstanees, but not
[orthe purpose of expressing an opinion on the eftectiveness of the
cormpany's internal contral

s Ewaluare the appropratensss of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of azcounung estmatas and relatec disclosures made by
Franagaemant,

o Conciude on the apprapnateness of management’s cse of the going soncarn
basis of accounting and. based on the audit avidence obiained, whether a
matanal uncertairty exists related o events or conditicns that miay cast
significant doubt on the caomzany's ahility to continug as a going concern. If
we conclude that & matenzsl urcertainty exists, we are required o draw
attention in our auditors' report to the refated disclosuras in 1he financial
staterments o, il such disclosures are inadeguate, to madity our opimgn. Our
conclusions gre based on the audit evidence cbfained up to the date of our
auditors’ report, However, fuiure events or conditions may cazuse the
comnpany to cease to cantinug 285 a going concam.

» Evaluate the overall presemation, structure and conlent of the financial
statements, including the disciosures, andwhether the financal statements
represant the underlying transactors and events in & manner that achisves
fair presentation

Wa communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amaeng otha
ratters, the planned scope and Uming of the audit and significant audit fingings,
including any significant dehiciencies in intermal contral that we idantify during
cunr audil,
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INDEPENMDENT AUDITORE' REPORT ([CONTIMUED)

Ta the Mambers of
JANAICS PUBLIC SERVICE COMEARNY LIMITED

Appendix to the Independent Auditors’ report {continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statemeant that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
communicate with tham zll relationships and other matters that may reascrably
be thought to bear on our indepandence, and where applicable, retated
safequards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governanae, we
determing thosematters that were of most significance in the audil of the
financial statements of the current perind and are therefore the key audi
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ reparl unless law or
requiation precludes public disclosure about the matier or when, in extremaly
rare circumstances, we determing thata matter should not be Semmunicatad in
aur repart because the adverse consagueencaes of doing sc would reasonably ba
expected to outweigh the public irterest benetits of such communication
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Statement of Financial Position
December 31,2016
(Expressed in United Stares Dollars)

Naotes 2016
$000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 678,065
Intangiblc assets 6 21,479
Emplovee benefits asset T(2)(1) 32,167
Other asset 8 89
Long-term receivables 9 -
731.800
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 10 R,650
Restricted cash 11 34,714
Accounis receivable 12 156,061
Due from related parties 18(a)(i} 10,360
Inventories 13 32,143
241,958
Total assets 9733758
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 14 261,786
Capital reserve 15 4,145
Capital redemption reserve 16 3,000
Retained carnings 126,480
395411
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and provisions 17 135,978
Corporation tax payahle 660
Due to related parties I8 (a)in) 2.966
Current portion of long-term loans 20 59622
199,224
Non-current liabilities
Customers’ depesits 19 24,294
Long-term leans 20 284,582
Sharcholder’s loan 21 -
Preference shares 22 24,688
Deferred taxation 23 38.061
Employee benefits obligation 7(b) 7,486
Deferred revenue 24 -
379,121
Total liakilities 378,247
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities 973,758

112,116
1,620
1.624

47935

163.255

25,054
106,282
2,000
27,688
34,616
7673
245

J

558

403,

5668

566,853

“

The {inancial statements on pages, 52 Lo 106, were approved by the Board of Directors on March 28, 2017, and

signed on its behal{ by:

) o
' _

AN Chairman Q»_; z
Chang Sup Jo Tatsuya Qzono

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of Profiy or Loss and Other Comprebensive Ineome
Year cnded December 31, 2016
{Expressed tn Unired Srates Dollars)

Notes 2016 2015
s'o0a £ 000
Orperating revenue 2 712,534 T39.819
Caost of sales 26(a) (427,792} (473,631}
Gross profit 284 742 285,188
Operating expenses 26(b) {220,337) (200.,042)
Operating profit 64,405 86,146
Finance income 2,825 2.430
Finance costs {_42.639) (44,907
et finance costs 26(c) [ 39814} [ 42,477
Other income 27May 10,378 2,449
Other expenses 27(b) (1975 { 15289
Profit before taxation 32,992 30,829
Texation 28 § 8941) [ 4.322)
Brafil for the year 24.051 26,507
Other comprehensive income
[terns that will never be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement gains on defined benefit
olan Tla)v) 6,703 6,246
Tax on remeasuregment gains on defined
benefit plan 23 [ 2.234) [ 2082
(rther comprehensive gain/(loss), nel of tax 4.469 4,164
Total comprehensive income attributable to
sharsholders 28.520 a7
Earnings per share 29 . Ollg — 013%¢

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the fnancial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Sharcholders' Eguity
Year ended December 31. 2016
{ Lpreased in United States Dollary)

Capital
Share Capital redemztion Retained
capilal rEsErve CESELYE SArnines Total
Froon 5000 SO0 froGo RV

(Mole B4) 0 (MNote 15) (Mare 163

Bzlarce at December 31, 2014 261,786 4,145 = Ti),289 336,220
Total comprehensive ingome for the yaar
Profil for the vear - - - 26,4507 26,507

Other comprehensive income:
Remeazirement losses on defined

benefit plan, net of tax LU L - 4.164 4164
Total comprekensive income for the vear - - - 30.671 30.671
Balance al December 31, 2015 261,785 4,145 = 100,950 266,891

Total comprehensive ingome for the year
Prodfit for the year - - - 24,051 24,051

Other comprehensive income;
Remeasurement losses on defined

benefit plan, net of tax - - - 4.469 4.46%
Total comprehensive income Jor the vear = = 2 28,520 _2B.5E0
Teansfer o capital redemption
FEREEVES - - 3.000 { 3.000) -
Balarce at December 31, 20146 261,786 _4,143 _ 3,060 128,450 305471

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows
Year crided December 31, 2014
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Motes 2016 2015
£oan SH000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Frofit for the vear 24,051 260,307
Adjustments lor:
Deprecialion and amorlisalion 5.6 77,507 37,949
Lioss on disposal o properly, plaal and eguipment 26 1.854
Amoriizabion of debt 1ssuance costs 15945 1,665
Amortisation of other assel 327 619
Linrealised foreipn exchange gains [ 757) [ 3,273)
Interesl expense 34,500 3BT
Interes! income 26(c) I HE1} { 1,062)
Interest capilalised 26i¢) (1,944 [ 1,368}
Taxaiion expense 7,730 5071
Defermed tax 23 1,211 [ 3,749
Emplovee beneiils assetfobligation, net 1,007 i 404)
Long term receivables and delerred revenue, net i R I |
Cash generated belore changes in working capital 146,430 125,136
Restricted cash [ 3670 { 3.594)
Accounls receivable (3L126) 50,031
Inventories [ 1433 2842
Aveounts pavable and provisions 71725 ;458537
Diue fremdo related parties 9018 381
Customers” deposits and advances 296 650
Clash generated from operations 125803 125,087
Taxation paid [__BA90Y { 7.75%)
Mel cash provided by operating activities 117,113 117,929
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Progesds from sale of property, plant and cquipment 119 -
Purchase of procerty, plant and equipment 3 [ 56,002) P oa4.941)
Purchase of intangible 2ssets & [ &40 ¢ 2.403)
her asset disposal {addition) - 2,763
Interest received 930 1042
Met cash used in investing aclivitics i a1.357) [_A3.53%)
CASIH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long-lerm loans received 32.210 o673
Fepayment ol long-lerm loans [ 45,013} { 54,715}
Fepayment of sharecholders” loan [ 2,000 -
Preference shares redeemed [ 3,000 -
Interest and dividend paid { 3486l [_38.524)
Mel cash used in linancing activities [_33.664) (_56.368)
Met increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .09z { 2,178
teer cash and cash equivalents al beginning of year 5,538 1736
NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR B 550 5,554

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Motes ta the Financial Statements
Deeember 31, 2014
{Expressed fn United States Dollars)

1.

[dentification, Regulation and Licence

(i}

ldentification;

Jamaica Public Serviee Company Limited ("the Company'™) s incorporated and
domiciled in Jamaica as a limited liability company. The company is owned by
MaruEnergy JIPRCO 1 SEL and EWP (Barbados) 1 SRL, cach holding 40440 interest
in the Company's shares, with the Government of Jamaica ({GOI) holding 19.9% and
privale individuals 0.1%,

MaruEnergy IPSCO | SRL is incorporated in Barbados and is ultimately owned by
Marubeni Corporation, which is incorporated in Japan. EWP {Barbados) | SRL is
incorporated in Barbados and is ulimately owned by the Korea Electric Power
Corporation, which is incorporated in South Korea, The Gowvernment of Jamaica's
ownership in the Company is held collectively through the Accountant General's
Drepartment and the Development Bank of Jamaica Limited.

In accordance with a Shargholder's Apreement, the majority shareholders have the
right to appoint six members of the Board of Directors while the GOJ has the right
to appoint three. Additionally, certain significant decisions of the Board of Directors
require a unanimous vote of the appointed directors.

The principal activities of the Company are generating, transmitting, distributing
and supplying electricity in accordance with the terms of the amended Electricity
Licence, 2016 (the Licence), granted on January 27, 2016, by the Minister of
Science, Technology, Energy and Mining,

The registered office of the Company is sitwated at & Knutstord Beulevard,

Kingston 5, Jamaica, W. 1., and its preference shares are listed on the Jamaica Stock
Exchange.

Regulatory arrangements and tariff structure:

The Licence authorises the Company to supply electricity for public and private
purposes within the Island of Jamaica, subject to regulation by the Office of Utilities
Regulation {(OUR). The OUR is established pursnant to the Office of Utility
Regulation Act, 1995, and as subsequently amended, with power and authority to
requite observance and performance by the Company of its obligations under the
Licence, and to regulate the rates charged by the Company,

Under the provisions of the Licence, the Company is granted the exclusive right to
transmit, distribute and sepply electricity throvughout the Island of Jamaica for a
period of twenty years and to develop new generation capacity within the lirst three
years from the effecive date of the Licence, Since the expiration of this initial three
vear petiod, the Company has the right, together with other persons, (o compete [or
the right 1o develop new generation capacity. The Licence was extended in August
2007 for an additional period of six vears through to 2027 upon the sale of the
Company by Mirant Corporation to Marubeni Corporation,

Schedule 3 of the Licence defines the rates for electricity and the mechanism Tor
rate adjustments.
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Moetes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Deeember 31, 2016
[ Expressed in United States Oollars)

Identification, Regulation and Licence (continued)
(b Repulatory armangements and tari (T structure (continned):

Under the Bicence, the rales for electricily consist of a Non-Fuel Base Rate, which
is adjusted annually using the Performance Based Rate-making Mechanism; and a
Fuel Rate, which is adjusted monthly to reflect fluctuations in actual fuel costs, net
of adiustments for prescribed efficiency targets. Both rates (fuel and non-fuel) are
adjusted monthly to accounl for movements in the monetary exchange rale between
the United States (US) dollar and the Jamaica dollar.

These rates are determined in accordance with the tariff regime, which provides that
lhe QUR annually reviews the Company's efficiency levels (system losses and heat
rate) and, where appropriate, adjusts these in the tariff, primarily relating to fuel
revenues, Under the rate schedule, the Company should recover 1s actual fuel costs,
nat of the prascribed efficiency adjustments, through its Fuel Rate.

As aof barch 1, 2004, and thereafter, on each succeeding fifth anniversary, the
Company must submit a iling o the QUR for further rate adjustments to its Non-
Fuel Base Rate. The rate filing, which requires OUR approval, is based on a tast
vear and iacludes defined "efficient” non-Tuel operating  costs,  depreciation
expenscs, laxes, and a fair return on investment.

Embedded in the OUR approved tariff is an amount to be set aside monthly to
provide for a Sell Insurance Sinking Fund in case of a major catasirophe affeeling
the Campany's operations.

i) South Jamaica Power Company Limited (SIPC):

As ar December 31, 2016, the Company held 20% of the issued share capital of
SIPC. SIPC has not traded since incorporation and the amount of the existing
investment is not considered significant to these financial statements.

2. Statermnent of compliance and basis of preparation
fay  Siatemnent of compliance:

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS} and their interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Slandards Board, and comply with the provisions of the Jamaican
Companies Act.

New, reyised and amended standards and inferpretations that became effective
during the year:

Certain new, revised and amended standards and interpretations which were in 1ssue
came into effect for the current financial year, The company has assessed them and
has adopted the follewing which are relevant to its operations.
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Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Drecember 31, 2016
[ Fxpressed n United States Dollars)

2. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation {continued)

ig}  Statement of compliance (contineed):

New, revised and amended standards and interpretations that became effective
during the year {continued):

o |AS |, Preseniation of Finoncial Sroarements, effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, has been amended to clarify or
state the following:

- specilic single disclosures thal are not material do nol have to be presented
even i they are minimum reguirements ol a standard.

- the order of notes to the financial statements is not prescribed.

- ling ifems on the statement of financial position and the statement of profit or
lozs and other comprehensive income (OCH should be disaggregated if this
pravides helptul information to users. Line items can be apprepated if they
dare not matarial,

- specific criteria are now provided for presenting subtotals on the statement of
financial position and in the statement of profit or loss and OCL with

additional reconciliation requirements for the statement of profit or loss and
OCL

- lhe presentation in the statement of OCI of items of OCI arising from joint
ventures and associates accounted for using the equity method follows the
1AS | approach of splitting items that may, or that will never, be reclassificd
to profit or loss.

o TFRS |4, Regwlarory Deferrad Acconnts, effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2016, provides guidance on accounting for
regulatory deferral account balances by first-time adopters of TFRS,

In order o apply the interim standard, an entity has 1o be rate-regulated, ie. the
establishment of prices thal can be charged to s customers for goods or services
is subject to oversight and/or approval by an authorised body, The term
‘regulatory deferral account balanee” has been chosen as a neutral deseriptor for
any expense (income) deferral or variance account that:

- s included or s expected to be included by the rate regulator in establishing
the rates(s) that can be charged to customers; and

- wouid not otherwise be recognised as an assat or lability under other IFR&s.

o Amendments to [AS 16 and [AS 38, Clarification of Acceptable Methody of
Depreciation and Amortisation, are effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2016,

- The amendment to TAS 16, Properly, Plant and Equipment explicitly states
that revenue-pased methods of depreciation cannot be used. This is becavse
such methods refiect factors other than the consumption of economic
benefits embodied in the assets.

JPS

JAMAICA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2016
|58 |




Motes to the Financial Statements {continued)
December 31, 2016

[ Expressed in United States Dollars)

2;

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation {continued)

{a)

Statement of compliance (continued):

New, revised and amended standards and inlerpretations that became efTective
during the vear (continued):

+ Amendments to [AS 16 and [AS 38, Clarification of Aeceprable Methods of
Depreciation and Amaortisaiion (continued)

- The amendment to [AS 38, Mmrameible Assers introduces a rebuttable
presumption that the uwse of revenue-hased amortisation methods is
inappropriste for intangible assets,

¢  Improvements 1o IFRS 2072-2004 cycle, contain amendments to certain
standards and interpretations and are effective for accounting perieds beginning
om or after January 1, 2016,

- FRS 7, Financial lnstruments: Disclosures, has  been amended to clarify
when servicing arrangements are in the scope of its disclosure requirements
on continuing involvement in fransferred assels inocases when they are
derceognised in their entirety. A servicer s deemed to have continuing
involvement if 30 has an interest in the future performance of the transferred
assel, e.p. 1 the servicing [ee is dependent on the amount or liming of the cash
Nows collected from the ransferred financial asset; however, the collection
and remittance of cash Nows from the transfemred assel 1o the transleres 18 not,
in itself, sufficient o be considered *continuing involvement’,

IFRS 7 has alsc been amended to clarify that the additional disclosures
required by Oisclosures: Offsetliing Financial Assefs and Financial Liabilities
{dmendment 1o IFRS 7p are not specifically required for inclusion in
condensed interim financial statements for all interim periods: however, they
are required if the peneral requirements of [AS 34, Ieterim Financial
Reporiing, require their inclusion.

- IAS 19, Emploves Benegfiis, has been amended to clarify that high-quality
corporate bonds or government bonds used in determining the discount rate
should be issued in the same curtency in which the benefits are to be paid.
Consequently, the depth of the market for high-quality corporate honds should
be assessed ar the currency level and not the country level.

< 1AS 34, Iwrerim Financlal Reporting, has been amended to clarify that certain
disclosures, if they are nol included in the noles o interim [inancial
siatements, may be disclosed “elsewhere in the interim financial report™. The
interim financial report is incomplete 17 the imerim financial statements and
any disclosures incorporated by cross-reference are not made available to
users of the interim linancial stalements on the same terms and af the same
time,

The adoption of these amendments did not result in any material changes to the
presentation and disclosure in the (inancial statements.
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Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
December 31,2016 i
([ Fxpressed in United Seares Dollavs)

2

()

Stalement of compliance {continued}:

New, revised and amended standards and interprefations that are not yet
effective:

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the following new, revised
gnd smended standards and interpretations, which were in issue, were not yet
effective and had not been early adopted by the Company, Those standards and
interpretations that management considers may be relevant to the Company are as
Forllows:

[FR& 9, Fingrcial mstruments, which is cffective for annual reporting periods
boginning on or after Janwary [, 2018, replaces the existing guidance in 1AS 39
Financial [nstruments: Recognition and Measurement, TFRS 9 includes revised
guidance on the classitication and measurement of financial assets and liabilities,
including a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment of
financial assets and the new general hedge accounting requirements. [t also
carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments from TAS 39 Althcugh the permissible measurement bases for
financial assets — amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCT) and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) - are similar to [AS 39,
the criteria for classification into the appropriate measurement category are
significantly different. TFRS % replaces the *incurred loss' madel in TAS 3% with
an ‘expected credit loss’ model, which means that a loss event will no longer
need to occur before an impairment allowance is recognised.

IFRS 15, Revenue From Confraces With Customers, effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, replaces 1AS |1, Caonstruction
Cowtracts, 1AS 18, Revenue, TFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes, 1FRIC
15, Agreements for the Consiruction of Regl Estate, IFRIC |8, Transfer of Assets
Siom Customers and SIC-31 Revenue-Bavter Transactions Involving Advertising
Services. |t does not apply to insurance contracts, financial instruments or leass
contracts, which fall in the scope of other I[FRSs. [t also does not apply if two
companies in the same line of business exchanpe non-monetary assefs to
facilitate sales to other parties.

The Company will apply a live-step model o delermine when o recognise
revenue, and at what amount, The model specifies that revenue should be
recognised when (or as) an entity transfors control of goods or services 1o a
customer gt the amount to which the entily expects to be entitled. Depending on
whether certain criteria are met, revenue is recognised st & point in lime, when
cantrel of goods or services is transferred to Lhe customer; or over lime, ina
mannar that best reflects the entily's performance.

There are new gqualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements to describe the
nature, amount, lining, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
conlracts Wi'l'.l'l CLETOITIEE,
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[ Expressed in United .’S‘m:e.'.: .’j-:j.a'a'ﬂ:l'ﬂ']

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation {continued)

{a)

Statement of compliance {continued);

New, revised and amended standards and interpretations that are not yet
effective (continued):

* IFRS 16, Leases, which is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2019, eliminates the current dual accounting madel for lessees,
which distinguishes between on-balance sheet [inance leases and off-balance
sheet operating leases. Instead, there iz a single, on-balance sheel sccounting
model that is similar to current finance lease accounting., Companies will be
required to bring all major leases on-balance sheet, recognising new assets and
liakilities.

The on-balance sheet liability will atiract interest; the total lease expense will be
higher in the early vears of a lease even if a lzase has fixed regular cash rentals.
Optional lessee exemplion will apply o short-term leases and for low-value
items with value of USE5,000 or less.

Lessor accounting remains similar 1o cwrent practice as the lessor will continue
o classify leases as finance and operating leases.

»  Amendments to lAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, effective [or accounting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2017, requires an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash lows and
non-cash flows,

o  Amendments to IAS 12, Jneome Taxes, effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2017, clarifizs the following:

- The existence of a deductible temporary difference depends solely on a
comparison of the carrying amount of an asset and its tax base at the end of
the reporting period, and is not affected by possible future changes in the
carrying amount or expected manner of recovery of the asser.

- A deferred tax asset can be recopnised if the future bottom line of the kax
return is expected to be a loss, if certain conditions are met.

- Future taxable profits used to establish whether a deferred tax can be
recognised should be the amount caleulated before the effect of reversing
tempaorary differsnces.

- An entity can assume that it will recover an assct for more than ils carrying
amount if there iz sufficient evidence that it 3s probahle that the entity will
achieve this, :

Deductible lemporary differsnces related to unrealised losses should be
azscssed on a combined basis for recognition unless a tax law restricts the use
of losses o deductions against income of a specific type.

Management is currently assessing the impact, i any, on the fnancial statements in
the future when the siandards or amendments are adopted.
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Motes to the Financial Statements {continued)
Drecember 31, 2016

[ Exprassed i United Siates Dollars)

2.

Srtatement of compliance and basis of preparation (continued)

{b)

Basis of preparation:

These financial statements are presented in United States dollars, which is the
functional currency of the Company. The United Stales dollar is the functional
currency, as it is the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

Al financial information presented in United States dollars has been rounded 1o the
nearest thousands, except where otherwise indicated.

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis, modified for the
inclusion of land at valuation, and defined benefits obligation/(asset) at fair value of
plar assets less the preseat value of the defined benefits obligation as explained in
note 3(b.

Use of estimates and judgements:

The preparation af the financial statemenls in accordance with PR requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of,
and disclosures relating to, assets, liabilities, contingent asseis and contingent
linhilitics at the reporting date and the income and expenses for the year then ended.
Actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

The estimates and underlving assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis,
Revisions to aceounting estimates ave recogrised in the period in which the estimate
is revised, 1 the revision allects only that period, or in the period of the revizsion and
[ulure periods, if applicable,

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS that have signilicant
effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of matenal
adjustment in the next financial year are discussed balow:

{iy  Post-employment benefits:

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position and staternent of
profit or loss and other comprehensive ineome Tor post-employment benefits
are determined actuarially using several assumptions, The primary assumptions
used in determining the amounts recognized include expected rales of salary
and pension increases, and the discount rate used to determing the presenl
value of estimated future cash flows required o scltle the pension obligation,

The discount rate is determined based on the estimate of vield on long-term
government securities Lhal have materity dates approximating the teems of the
Company's ohligation; in the absence of such instruments in Jamaica, it has
been necessary 1o cstimate the rate by extrapolating from the longest-tenure
security on the markel. Any changes In these assumptions will affect the
amounts recorded in the financial statements for these obligations,
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{fxpressed in United States Dallarsy

2. Statement of complisnce and basis of preparation (continued)

ie)  LUseof estimates and judgements (continued):
(iiy  Allowance for impairment losses on receivables:

In determining amounts recorded for impairment losses in the financial
staterents,  management makes  judgoments  regarding indicators of
impairment, that is, whether there are indicators that there may be a measurable
decresse in the estimated future cash flows from receivables, for example,
detault and adverse economic conditions. Management also makes estimates of
the likely estimated future cash flows from impaired receivables as well as the
timing of such cash flows. Historical loss experience is applied where
indicators of impairment are not observable on individually significant
receivables with similar characteristics. such as cradit risks.

(iii) [.easearrangements:

Managemert evaluates all purchase arrangements Lo assess whether they
contain leases |[Notes 3{p) and 4].

{iv) Unbilted revenue;

Unbilled revenue at each month-end is estimated consistently based on the
average amounts billed in the billing peried immediately preceding each
reporting date, including amounts unbilled for Independent Power Provider
{1PP) charges.

(v) Capitalisation and useful lives of property, plant and equipment:

Management exercises judgement in determining whether the costs incurred
can goerye significant Rsture economic benefits to the Company fo enable the
cxpenditure to be treated as a capital expense,

Further judgement is applied in the annual review of the useful lives of all
calegories ol property, plant and equipment and the resolling depreciation
thereon.

(vi)  Adlowanee for inventory obsolescenee:

The Company assesses its inventory on an annual basis to determine any
allowance that should be carried for ftems that are in good condition, but will
not be used in the foreseeable future, Allowance is also made for items that
have deteriorated or become damaged while in stock.
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Motes to the Financial Statements {continued)
December 31, 2016

( Expressed in United States Dollars)

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(a)

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:
Recognirion and measurement

o accordance with 1AS {6, additions to property, plant and squipment, replacement
of retirement units of plant in service, or additions to construction work-in-progress
include direcl labour, materials, prolessional fees and an appropriate charge for
overheads. When signilicant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be
roplaced at intervals, the Company recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific uselul lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Specialised plant and equipment are measured at deemed cost at the IFRS transition
dare of January 1, 2003, less aceumulated depreciation and impairment losses, while
all other property, plant and equipment are measured at cost except for land, which is
measured at revalued amounts. Land was revalued as at December 31, 2014, by an
independent valustor using the Market Comparable Basis which utilises the sale
values for similar properties within the relevant period,

Valugtions are performed with sufticient frequency to ensure that the fair value of the
revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount at the reporting
date.

Property, plant and equipment being constructed are carried at cost less recognised
impainment losses.

Intangible assets includes computer software measured at cost, lass amortisation and
impairment  losses, and land rights measured at ecost. [mpaicment losses are
recognised in profit or loss in operaling expenses.

Dapreciation and amortisation:

Land and land rights are not depreciated.  Other property, plant and equipment and
intangible assels are deprecialed or amaortized on the straight-line basis at annoal rates
estimated to write down the assets to their recoverable values over their expected
usetul fives.

The depreciation rates, which are specilied by the Licence, are as follows:

(]
.

2%, 249% & 2.86%

ol

Steam production plant
Hydraulic production plant

o

=

Orher production plant
Tranzmission plant
Distribution plant

Creneral plant & equipment:

Buildings and structures
Transporl cquipment
Other equipment

204%, 4%, 4%:% & 5%
4%
3.33%, 4%, 3%, 6%9% & 20%

2%
14.30%
10%0 16.67% & 20%
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

{a)  Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (continued):
Depreciation and amaortisqlion {continued):

Compurer software which is classified as an intangible asset is amortised at 16.67%
per annum. Subssquent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the assel. All other expenditure is recognised in profit
or loss as incurred,

Usetul lives and residual values are renewed at each reporting date and adjusted as
appropriae.

(bl Employee benefits:

Employee benefits comprising pensions and other post-employment assets and
obligations included in these fnancial stalements have been actuarially determined
by & qualified independent sctuary, appointed by management.

The appointed actuary’s report outlines the scope of the valuarion and the actuary’s
opinicn. The actwarial valuations are conducted in accordance with LAS 19, and the
financial starements reflect the Company’s post-employment benefits asset and
obligation as computad by the actuary.

{iy Pension assers:

The Company participates in two pension plans (a defined benefit plan and a
defined contributicn pension plan}, the assets of which are held separately from
those of the Company.

Obligations for contributions to the delined contribution pension plan are
recognized 45 an expense in profil or loss as incurred,

The defined benefit pension plan requires the Company to contribute a
percentage of employees' pansionable earnings and employees to contribute a
sitnilar amount, Such contributions, which are actuarially determined, providas
for current costs and amounts 1o amortise any past service deficits disclosed
over the average fulure working lifetime of the active membearship.

The Company's net oblipation in respect of the defined benefit pension plan is
calculated at each reporting date by estimating the amount of future benelits
that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods, discounting it to determine its present value, and deducting the fair
value of the plan assets, To the extent that the obligation is less than the fair
value of the plan assets, the asset recognised is restricted to the discounted
value of future benefits available to the Company in the form of fulure refunds
or reductions in contributions. The discount rate applied is the wield at
reporting date on long-term govermment instruments that have maturity dates
approximating the term of the Company's obligation. In the absence of such
instruments in Jamaica, it has been necessary lo estimate the rvate by
extrapalating from the longest-tenure scourity om the market.
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Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2016
( Expressed in United Siates Dollars)

P

T Summary of sizgnificant accounting policies {continued)

(bl  Employee benefits (continued):
{iy  Pension assets:

The caleulation of the net defined benefits obligationfasset is performed by the
appoinled actuary vsing the Projected Unit Credit Method,

Remeasurements of the net defined benefits obligation/asset, which comprise
actuarial gains and losses, and the effect of the assel ceiling (if any, excluding
inferest), are recognised in other comprehensive income, The Company
determines the nst interest expensefincome on the nel defined benefit
liability/assel for the period by applying the discount rate used o measure the
defined benefit obligation al the beginning of the annual period 1o the nel
defined henefit obligation/asser, taking inlo account any changes in the net
defined benefit obligation/asset dusing the period as a result of contributions
and benelil payments.

et interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognised in profit or loss.

When Lhe benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan iz curtailed, the
resulting change in benelit that refates 1o past service or the gain or loss on
curtgilment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company
recognises gains and losses on the settlement of 4 defined benefit plan when
the settlement ocours.

{ii}  Orther employee benefits:

A provision 1s made for unutilised vacation and sick leave in respoect of service
rendered by employees up to the reporting date, Under collective bargaining
agresments, employees are entitled to a termination benefit in relation to their
unutilised wacation and sick leave entitlements that accumulate in certain
instances over the life of their service. The provision includes estimated
employer's statutory contributions arising on leave-vesting, No discounting is
applied to unutilized vacation and leave as the timing cannot reliably be
determined.

{cy  Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances ineluding short-term
deposits with maturities ranging between one and three months from the reporting

date.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and shost-term deposits, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.
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December 31, 20146

{Expresyed fn United Siates Dollars)

3. Summary of sipnificant accounting policies (continugd}

rdl  Accounts receivable:

Trade and other accounts receivable are measured at amortised cost less impairment
fosses,

{e) Inventories:

Inventories comprise fuel stocles; and generation, transmission and distribution spare
parts, [nventories are valued at the lower of cost, determined on a weighted averape
cost basis, and net realisable value.

(f3  Accounts pavable:
Trade and other payables are measured at amortised cosL.
tal Provistons:

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company
has an obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
eeonomic benelils will be reguired to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of ihat obligation. If the effect iz material, provisions are determined by
dizvounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market

assessments of the fime value of money, and, where appropriate, the risks specific o
the obligation,

{hy  Borrowings:
(11 Capiralisation of borrowing costs:

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the construction of qualifying assets
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assels gre
substantially ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the peried in which they are incurred,

(i) Debt issuance costs:

These represent legal, accounting and financing fees associated with sccuring
certain long-term loans, which are amortised on an effective rate basis over the
lives of the loans.

(111}  Interest-bearing borrowings:

Interesl-bearing  borrowings are recognised initially at fair wvalue plus
transaction costs directly atiributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.
Subsequent 1o inital recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated al
amorlised cost using effective interest method.
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December 31, 2016
(Fxpressed in United Srates Dollars)

)

Summary of sienilicant zecounting policies {continued)

(i)

()

)

Customers® deposits:

Given the long-term nature of customer relationships, customers’ deposits and
construction advances are shown in the statement of financial position as non-current
liahilities (i.e., amounts not likely to be repaid within twelve manths of the reporting
date). Interest is credited annually on customers’ deposits af rates prescribed by the
Licence,

Preference shares:

The company’s redeemahle preference shares are classified as liabilities because Lhey
bear non-discretionary dividends and are redeemable in cash by the holders. Non-
discretionary dividends thereon are recognised as interest expense in profit or loss as
aecrued.

Share capital:
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
[mpairment:

The carrying amaounts of the Company's assets are reviewed at cach reporling date to
determine whether thers is any indication of impairment. 11 any such indication
gxists, an asset's recoverable amount is estimated, An impainment loss is recognised
whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds ils
recoverable amount, Impairment losses are recognised in the profil or loss,

Caleulation of vecoverable amounis

The recoverable amount of the Company's receivables is caleulated as the present
value of expected fulure cash Dows, discounted at the original elfective interest rare
inherent in the asset. Receivables with a shorl duration are not discounted,

The recoverable amount of other assels is the preater of their fair value less cost to
sell and value in use. ln assessing value in use, the estimated entity-spacific future
cash flows are dizcounied to their present value using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the tme value of money and the risks specific to the
assel, For an asset that does not generate independent cash inflows, the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss in respect of receivables is reversed if the subsequent inerease in
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an evenl occwring after the
impairment loss was recognised. An impaitment loss in respect of non-monetary
assets is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate wsed to determine the
recoverable amount,
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Motes to the Financial Statements {continued)
December 31, 2016
{ Expressed in Uniled States Dollars)

3. Surnmary of sienificant accounting pelicies {econtinued)

(m) Revenue recognition:
(1] Oiperaling revenue:

Operating revenue represents income for the provision of electricity and
related services. Income is recognised for hillings made for these services and
an estimate of electricity supplicd prior W the end of the reporting period
which 15 to be billed subsequently {referred to as “unbilled revenues™),

{ii}y  Interest income:

Interest income is recognised on an acerual basis using the effeetve interest
method.

(i)  Rental income:

Rental income from operating leases is accounted for on a straight line basis
aver the lease term and is included in profit or loss,

(n] Taxation:
Current and deferred taxes:

Taxation on profit or 1oss for the year comprises current and deferred tax, Taxation is
recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates o items recognised in
other comprehensive income, in which case it is also recognised in other
comprehensive income.,

Currenl lax is the expected tax payable on the income for the year, using tax rates
enacted at the reporling date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax s computed by providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounls used [or taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on
the expected manner of realizsation or setilement of the carrying amount of assets and
lighititics, using tax rates enacted at the reporting date,

A deferred tax liability is recognised for taxable temporary differences, except to the
extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the lemporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foresesable futurs,

A deferred fax asset i recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profils will be available against which the asset can be utilised, Deferred tax
assefs are reduced to the extent that il is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realiscd,
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Motes to the Financial Statements {continued)
December 31, 2014

[ Expressed jn United Siates Dollars)

=
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

o)

Related parties:

A related party is & person or company that is related o the entity which is preparing
ils [nancial stalements (referred to in [AS 24 Relgred Party Disclosures as the
“reporting entity™, that is, “the Company™).

(2] A person or a close member of that person’s family s related 1o the Company 37
that person:

{i}
{ii)
(i)

Has controi or joint control over the Company;
Has significant influence over the Company; or

s a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of &
parent of the Company.

{b)  An entity is related 1o the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

()

{ii}

(i)
(iv)
(v)

{vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Comparny are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
othars).

Ong entily is an associale or joint venlure of the other enlity (or an
associale or joinl venture of 4 member of a proup of which the other
entity is a member).

Baoth entities are joint veniures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity iz an
associale of the third entity.

The enlily is & post=cmployment benefit plan established for the benefit
of employees of either the Company or an entity related to the Company,

The entity is controlled, or jointly controlled by a person identified in {a).
A person identified in {(a)(i) has significant influence over the reporting
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting

entity [or of a parent of Lhe entity).

The entity or any member of a proup of which it is a part, provides key
management services to the company.

A related party transaction involves ransler of resources, services or obligations
between & reporting entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price is

charged,

The Company's key related party relationships are with its primary shareholders,
their parent companies, fellow subsidiaries, associated companies, the Government
ol lamaica, directors, key management personnel and its two pension plans.
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Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Summary of significant accounting policies {continucd)
ipl  Leases:
As lesses:

(g}

(r}

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or 10ss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease. The Company doos nol have any leasc
arrangements in which the lease payments are determined on a contingent basis, nor
do any of the arrangements currently in effact impose any restrictions with respeet 1o
paying dividends, taking additional debt or entering into other lease arrangements.

With respect to the lease of the head office building, which has a (xed lease lerm of
10 vears at & fixed ammual rental charge, the Company has a fGrst rght of refusal
should the Tessor opt (o scll the building,

A lessor:

Leases in which the Company dees not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits
ol ownership ol an assel are classified as eperating leases. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating an operating lease are added 1o the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue in the peried in which they are earned.

Foreign currencies:

Transactions in forelgn currencies are converted al the rates of exchange ruling on
the dates of those transactions. Monetary assets and Hahilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are translated to United Stales dollars at the rates of
exchange ruling at that date. Gains and losses arising from fluctuations in exchange
rates are included in profit or loss.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, realised foreign currency gains and
tosses are treated as cash flems and included in cash flows from operating or
financing activities along with movement in the refevant balances,

Segment reporting;
An operating segment 15 a component of an entity:

(iy  that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses {including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other
components of the same entity),

{i1)  whose operating results are regularly reviewad by the entity's chief operating
decision maker (o make decisions about resources to be allocated Lo the
segment and assess its performance, and

[iii)  for which discrete financial information is available,
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Motes to the Finangial Statements (continued)

Decermber 31, 2016

i Exprersed in United Stares Dollars)

(r}

(s)

3 Sunumary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Sepment reporting {continued):

The Company maintains an integrated operating structure and its operations are
reviewed by management and directors as a whole and not in segments.
Consequently, no segment diselosures are included in the linancial staternents,

Financial instrumeants and fair value measurement:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one
enterprise and a financial Hability or equity instrument of another enterprise.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-lor-szle Ninancials assels as
appropriate. All linaneial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction
cosls altribulable Lo the aequisiton of the asser. For the purposes of these [inancial
statements, financial assets have been determined o include cash and  cash
cquivalents, restricted cash, long term receivables, accounts receivable, due from
related party and other assets, The category most relevant to the Company 15 loans
and receivables |see also note 3(dY).

A financial asset is derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired or the Company has transterred its right to receive cash flows from the
asset. Purchases and sales of financial instruments are accounted for at settlement
dates.

Financial liabilities are claszified at imitial recognition as financial labilities at fair
value through profit or loss, or at amortised cosl, as appropriate. Al [inancial
liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, net of directly
attributable transaction costs. The Campany's financial liabilities include accounts
payable, other financial liabilities, due to related parties, customers’ deposits,
preference shares and loans.

The measurement of financial labifitics depends on their classification, as described
below;

Financial labilities at fair value through profii or loss

These include liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabililies are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing or
settlement in the near term. Gains and losses on these Babililics are recognised in
profit or loss on settlement, Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, only
if the criteria in 1AS 39 are satisfied.
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Motes to the Financial Statements {continued)
December 31, 2016 -
(Expressed in United States Dallars)

3. Summary of signilicant aceounting policies (continued)

{s) Financial instruments and fair value measurement {contineed);

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as deseribed
below {continuead):

Finarcial liahilities ar amortised cost

A financial lability is derccognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires, When an existing financial lability is replaced
by another from the same lender or al substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an ecxchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition ol the original ligbility and the recognition of a new
lizbiliry.

Derivative fingecial insiruments

The Company may use derivative financial instruments such as inferest rate swaps o
hedge its interest rate risks, Such dervivative financial instruments are initially
recognised 4l fair value on the date on which the derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently remeasured at fair value, Derivatives are carried as financial
Habilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in
the fzir value of denvatives are taken to profit or loss.

Fuir value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid o transfer a
liahility between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value is baszed
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either:

- in the principal market for the asset or lighility, or

- in the absence ol a principal market, in the most advantsgeous market for the
asset or lability.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial assets takes into account a market
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another marlet participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

All assets and liabilities for which fair valua is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are classified within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as 8 whele:

. Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) marketr prices in active markets for identical
assats ar liabilities.,

. Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpur that is
significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

" Level 3 — Valuation technique for which the lowest level input ithat is
significant to the fair value measurement is unchservable,
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MNotes 1o the Financial Statements {continued)
December 31, 2016
{ Expressed in United States Dollars)

4. Power purchase contracls

The Company has entered into agreements with Independent Power Providers (1PTs) for
the purchase of enetgy capacity and net energy output,

The TPP arrangoments arg:
Contracl termination date

The Jamaica Private Power Company Limited (JPPC) January 2018
Jamaica Aluminum Company Limited (JAMALCO) December 20149
Wigton Wind Farm Limited { Wigton} May 2024 & 2036
Jamaica Energyv Partners {JEP) February 2026
West Kingston Power Partners { WIKPE) July 2032
Content Solar Limited (C8) August 2036
EBME Jamaica Wind Limited (BMER) June 2038

All agreements are subject to termination prior to the contract dates upon the occurrence of
certain events of default as specified in the agreements, and are renewable for an additional
period, provided the party seeling the extension gives written notice, ranging from two to
six years, before the end of the initial term.

Certgin ggreements requite payment for gvailable energy capacity and for certain operating
cosls and overheads, Additionally, certain agreements require the Company o provide a
banker's guarantee n relation to contractual payments, The Company has financing
grrangemenls with linancial inslitulions, which guarantee access o lunds by 1PPs [or
contractually agreed payments. As at December 31, 2016, the total guarantees under
Standby Letters of Credit amounted wo 830.7 million (2015; $23.8 million), These facilitics
were not accessed during the vear,

The contracts with JEP, JPPC, WEKPP, Wigton, C8 and BMR have been assessed as
operating leases. The contract with JAMALCO is oot considered an arrangement that
containg a lease. The operating leases with JEP, WEPP and JPPC give rize to unexpired
commitments for energy capacity and certain operating charges payvable, At December 31,
2016, the minimum lease payments are as follows:

2016 2015

SO0 000

Within | year 46,870 68,370
From 1-2 vears 46204 a1,816
From 3-5 vears 121,667 168,518
Over 5 vears 304,377 507,618
319,118 806320

Lease payments under operating leases with [PPs recognised in profit or loss for the year,
agoregated approximately $121.1 million (2015: $105.8 million) [Note 26(a)].
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Moles Lo the Financial Statements {continued)
December 31, 2016
[ Expressed in United Stares Dollars)

54

Property, plant & equipment {continued)

(a)

(b)

| approach: The

" existing comparable

Land and buildings inciude land, at valuation, agpregaling approximately $289
million (2013: §28.9 millior). OfF this amount, the cost of land, amounted w §235
million (2013: 525 million). Land, which is considered a separate class of assets, was
revalued in 2014 by an independent professional waluator, Management  has
determined that the valuations carried in the linancial statements on the basis of the
last external valuation do notl need further adjustments as at December 31, 2016,

The fair value of land is caregorised as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy., The
following table shows the valualion technigue used in measuring fair value as well as
the significant unobservable inpuis used.

Yaluation techniques
Market comparable

approach is based on
the principle af

« substitution whessby
the purchazer with
perfect knowledge of
the property market
pays no more for the
subject property than |
the cost of acquiring an |
Cassuming ne cost delay
in making the
substitution,

The approach requires
comparison of the
subject property with
others of similar design
and utility, inter alia,
which were sold in the
recent past.

Howeaver, a5 no two
properties are exactly

[ alike, adjustment is
made for the dilference
- between the property
subject to valuation and
comparable propertics.

Significant

| unobservable inputs

Inter-relationship between
key unobservable inputs
and fair value measurement

» Details of the sales
of comparable
properties.

» Conditions
influencing the sale
of comparable
properties.

s Comparability
adjustments,

The estiunated fair  walue
would increase/(decrease) ift

s Sale value of comparable
properties ware
higher/{lower).

¢ Comparability adjustments
were higher!( fower).

JPS

JAMAICA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2016

176 |




Motes to the Financial Sratements {continued)
December 31, 2016

( Expressed in United States Dollars)

i) Property, plant & equipment {continued)

(¢} The carrving value of temporarily idle property, plant and equipment ar December
31,2016 was 52.61 million (20135: £3.10 million).

(d}  Interest capitalised during construction for the year amounted to approximarely 1.9
million (2015: $1.4 million). The capitalisation rate vsed for the year was 3.995%
{2015: 3.984%).

{e) The composile rale of depreciation for the year was approximately 6.89% (2015

5.24%).

6. Intaneible assets

e e e o

This represents acquired software costs capitalised and land rights purchased as follows;

Soflware Land righis L'otal
7000 $000 S0
Cost or valualion:
December 31, 2014 19,171 - 19,171
Additions 2.397 f 2,403
Translers - 3.254 5,254
December 31, 2013 21,568 3,260 26,828
Additions 6,404 - 6404
December 31, 2006 27.972 5,260 33.232
Depreciation:
December 31, 2014 5,221 - 5,221
Charze for the year 1.542 - 1,542
Deeember 31, 2015 6,763 - 6,763
Charge for the vear 4.990 - 4,990
December 31, 2016 11.753 - 11,753
Met ool values:
December 31, 2016 16,219 5,260 21,479
December 31,2015 14,805 5260 20,063

Software includes software projects in development of $3.6 million (2015: $3.1 million).
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Motes 1o the Financial Statements {continued)
December 31, 2016 s
{fxpressed (n Onited States Dollary)

7. Employee benefits

(i)

Defined benefit pension plan;

The Company administers a defined-benefit pension plan for sslected emplovees and
their beneficiaries. The accumulated fund is administered by the trustees who are
assisted by an independent plan administrator and thres fund managers; Sagicor Life
of Jamaica Limitad, Prime Asset Management Limited and NCB [nsurance Company
Limited. The administrator is Employee Benefits Administrator Limited, a whaolly
owned subsidiary of Sagicor Life Jamaica Limited, whose offices are located at 48
Barbados Avenue, Kingston 5, Jamaiea, W.1 Elfective February 1, 2007, the fund was
closed to new entrants.

O retirement, a member is entifled to be paid an annual pension of 3% on the
highest average of the member's annual pensionable salary during any consecutive

three vear period of pensionable service, multiplied by the number of years of
pensionable service.

The plan was approved and registered pursuant to Section 13 of the Pensions
{Superannuation Funds and Retirement Schemes) Act, 2004 on December 16, 2009

(i Employee benefits:

20106 2015
000 1000
Present value of funded obligations { 76430 { T2,859)
Fair value of plan assets 140,764 128,163
Unrecognised amount due to limitation (32,167 { 27.652)
Asset recopnised in statement of finangial
position 32,167 27,652
(i Movements in funded obligations:
2016 2013
$000 $: 000
Balance at beginaing of vear [ 72,859} (58.05%)
Benefits paid 1,475 2,848
Current service cost (2,410 ( 2,127
Past service cost — vested benafits - r3,263)
Eriterest cost { &0l {5,321
Vaoluntary contributions [ 556) {489
Settlement 271 B8Rl
Remeasurement loss on obligation for OCI [ 223) (10,104}
Exchange gain _ 3,889 2715
Balance at end of year (16,430 {(12.859)
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MNutes ter the Financial Statements {continued)
Decamber 31, 2016
[ Expressed tn United Stares Dollars)

7 Employee benelits {continued)

{a}  Defined benefit pension plan (continued);

(i) Movements in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of vear
Contributions paid:
Employer
Employeses
Interest income on assets
Benefits paid
Refund to company
Remeasurement gain on assets tor OCI
Exchange loss

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

Comprising:

Investments quoled 1n active markels:
Equitics
Crovernment bonds
Corporate bonds and other debt seeuritics
Pooled pension investments

Unguoted investments:
Real eslale
Repurchase agreements
Met eurrenl asseis

(
(

{

5

014 2015
Foo0 $r 000

128,163 100,639

1,420 1.482
1.978 1,571
10,262 5,133

1475} ( 2.848)
4,815) -

13,630 22,596
8.397)  (_4.810)

Included in the plan assers as at December 31, 2016 are:

140, 764 128,62

53,004 37,453
47,938 53,067
11,384 12,372
9,428 8,096
13,292 12,457
3,001 .
2,717 4718

144), 764 128,163

» Real estate occupied by the Company with a fair value of $13.0 million

(2015: $12.5 million),

o PS5 1% promissory notes with a fair valee of $0.31 million (2015: 30.35

million); and

« JPS 9.3% non-redesmable preference shares with a fair value of $3.1

million {2013 $3.2 million).

All invesiments are issued by the Jamaican povernment or companies

demiciled in Jamaica.
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Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
December 31, 2016
(Expressed in Unired Srares Dollars)

T Emplovee bensfits {continued)

(2]  Defined benefit pension plan {continued}):

{iv) Debit{eredily recognised in profit or loss:

2016 2015
B0 S7000

Currant service cost 2410 2,127
[iterest cost 6,017 332
[nterest income on assets (10,262) (9,133}
Past service cost - 3,263
Settlement {27 {881y
Total {eredit)/debit {_2,106) ]
Met (credit)/dehit recognised due

to limitation {_1053) _348
The (credit)/debit is recognised in staff cost-other employees’ costs in profit ar
loss [MNote 26(R]].

() Remeasurement gains recognised in other comprehensive incoma:

2006 2015
F000 SO0
Remeasurement Joss on obligation for OC1 ( 223) (10, 104)
Remeasurement gain on assets for OCI 13,620 22,506
Tatal remeasurement gain, net 13,407 12,492
Remeasurement gain recognised
due to limitation 6,703 6,246

{vi]  Remeasurement loss on defined benefit obligation arising from:

2016 2015
E000 $000
Changes in linancial assumptions B0 ¢ B.310)
Experience adjustments (1.024) {1,794}
Remeasurement loss on defined
benefit obligation (_223) (10,104}
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Maoles to the Financial Statements (conlinued)
December 31, 2016 G ST
{Lxpressed in United Siates Dallars)

7. Lmplovee benefits {continued)

(a) Defined benefit pension plan {continued)

{vii) Remeasurement gain on defined benefit assets arising from:

2016 2015

000 5000

Return on plan assets 23,892 31,729

Interest income on plan assets (10,262) [ 9,133)

13,630 22,506

(vill) Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted
averages):

0L6 015

Inflation rate 6.00% 3.50%

Discount rate 0.00% 8.30%

Future salary increases 6.00% 3.004%

Future pension increases 0.00%% 0.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on GAM(S4)M and
GAM{94)[ tables with ages reduced by five years, The expected long-term
rate of return is based on the assumed long-term rate of inflation,

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at
December 31, 20016, 15 18 vears (2015: 18 years).

The Company’s estimated contribution for the 12 months after year end s
$1.50 million {2015: 51,60 million).

(ix)  Sensivivity analysis:

The calculation of the projected benefit obligation is sensitive to the
assumptions used. The table below summarises how the defined benefit
obligation measured at the end of the reporting pericd would have
increased/{decreased) as a result of a change in the respective assumptions by
one pereentage point. [n preparing the analvsis for each assumption, all others
were held constant,

2016 . . 2015
Inerease Decrease  Inerease  Decrease
1% 1% 1% 1%
Fro00 $000 000 000
Dhscounl rate 65,810 89,861 bo,636 B3879
Future salary growth £1,947 11,326 17,886 68441
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Motes to the Iinancial Statements (continuecd)
December 31, 2016 _ =
(Expressed in United Siates Dollars)

7. Emploves henefits {continued)

(g} Defined benefit pension plan (continued)
(ix)  Sensitivity analysis {continued):

There were no changes to the methods used to prepare the sensitivity
analyses,

(b)  Other emplovec benelits obligation:

2016 2015
000 S000
Accumulated sick and vacalion pay 7,496 7673

{cy  Delined contribulion pension plan:

The Company's contriburion to the defined contribution pension plan for the year
aggregated 30,80 million (2015: $0.60 million). These are recognised in staff cost-
other emplovees’ costs [Note 26(b}] in profit or loss,

A. Cither agset

This represenis the cost of materials and labour incurred to wire the houses ol certain
customers, The amounts are being amortised over 2 period of thirly to sixty months, the
period over which the Company expects to be reimbursed by the customers.

2016 2015

$000 5000
Al beginning ol year 616 3,998
{ Disposals)fadditions - (2,763)
Amortisation (527) (_619)
At end of year _BY 614

9. Long-tenm receivahles

These represent the long term portion of expenditure incurred by the Company for the
wiring ol houses for cerlain customers, recoverable over periods ranging from thirty (30
1o sixty (60} months (Notes 8 and 243,

2016 2015

£ 000 5000

Receivable 133 a3
Current portion included in other receivables (Note 12) (133} (_353)
o ?:5.;
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Motes to the Financial Statements {continued)
Decermber 21, 2016
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

10. Met cash and cash equivalents

2016 2015
ST000 F1000
Cash at bank and in hand 8,650 5,558

I'l.  Restricted cash
2016 2015
000 STO00
Self-insurance sinking fund id 184 30,522
Deposit guarantees an staft loans, TPF contracts ete, 530 521
24,714 31,043

The self-insurance sinking fund represents cash maintained as part of the sell-insurance
sinking fund administered under the direction of the QUR [Note 1(b}]. The tenm deposits
in the sinking fund earn interest at a rate of 2,25% (2013: 2.4%) per annum,

[2. Accounts receivable

2016 2015
5000 000
Trade receivables [Note (1)) 171,184 153,422
Allgwance for impainment losses [Motes (1) and {ii}] {_46.001) {_43.331)
123,093 108,071
Unbilled revenus 12,482 -
Prepayments 6,785 6,301
Current portion of long=term receivables {(Note 9) 133 353
Other receivables L1398 10.042
136,081 124,967
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Motes to the Financial Statements {continued)
December 31, 2016

[ Fxpressed v United Stares Dollars)

12, Accounts receivablg (continued)

(i) The aging of trade receivables at the reporting date is as follows:

e B o JHRSE
(iroiss Ciross
receivabie  lmpairment  receivable Impairment
1000 $£1000 2000 £*000
Meither past due nor impaired:
Due 0-30 days 76,593 e _63.304 .
Past due and not impaired:
Past due 31-60 days 9,183 - 7.854 -
Past due 61-490 davs 6,378 - 5422 -
hore than Y0 days 32,937 - 31,489 -
48, 5000 - 44,787 -
Past due and impaired:
More than 90 days 46,091 46,091 43,351 43,351
171,184 46,091 153,422 43,151

(i) Movement in impairment losses for trade receivables is as follows:

2016 2015

5000 3000

Balance at beginning of year 45351 47,276
Impairment loss recognised (0,721 13,729
Amounts recovered during the period 2,795) { 2,144
Amounts written off during the period { T.186) {13,510y
Balance at and of year 46,09 4535]

13, Inventories

2016 2015

oo 000

Fuel 12,116 9.938
Generation spares 7817 7,732
Transmission, distribution and other sparss 14,594 16,918
34,527 34588

Less: Allowance for impairment {2384 {_3.878
32,143 30,710
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Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)

December 31, 2016

{ Fxpressed in United Stares Dallars)

[4.

15.

IF:

Share capital

Authorised ordinary share capital:
Oredinary stock units at no par value
Crrdingry shares at no par valug

Balance as at December 31, 2015 and 2016

Issued and fully paid;
Ordinary share capital
Ordinary stock units
Ordinary shares

At year end (Nole 29)

Capilal reserve

Mo of shares

315,733,190
20.000,000.000

Mo of sharas 2016
5000
315,733,190 3,684

21.512,462,056 256,102
21.828.195.246 261,786

This represents the net surplus arising on the revaluation of land.

Capital redemption reserve

This represents the value of the Class "G" preference shares redeemed during the year
(Maote 21 and was created through a transter from retained eamings.

Aceounts payable and provisions

Trade payables

Interest acerued on customer deposils and Joans
Unbilled revenues

Dividend payablz (Note 30)

Current portion of deferred revenue (Mote 24}
Oiher payables

Pravisions (see below)
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Motes to the Financial Statements {continued)
December 31, 2016
(Expressed in United Stares Dollars)

17, Accounts payable and provisions {continued)

Movement in provisions during the year was as follows:

2016 2015
8000 5000
Al beginning of yvear 13,398 9,802
Provisions made during the year 203 3,687
Provisions utilised during the vear (  792) v aly
Provisions reversed during the year (_3.938) 5
At the end of year 8,833 L3398
L&, Felated party balances and transactions
(g} The following balances were due to/{from) related parties:
2016 2015
$7000 F000

ity Bue from:
South Jamaica Power Company Limited 10,295 -
Marubeni Caribbean Helding &

:, -
e o
EWP (Barbados) 1 SRL 1.666 1,602
Marubeni Caribbean Holding - 22
Government of Jamaica 1,300 -
_2,966 1,624

These balances are unsecured, interest fres and have no fixed repayment terms.
(b) Relared party transactions:

{it ~ The Company has various ongeing transactions with related companies. These
include the provision of technical support and related professional services and
the acquisition of specialised equipment and spare parts. These transactions
inciude charges from MaruEnerpy JPSCO | SEL and EWD {Barbados) | SRL
ol approximately $2.% million (2083 E3.02 million) and recharges of
approximately 3008 million (2015: $1.2 millien) and developmental fee income
ol $2.5 million from South Jamaica Power Company Limited (SIPC),

iy  During 2016, the Company repaid the 52 million loan owing o EWP
(Barbados) | SRL which bore interest at the rate of 11% per annum (MNote 21}

During 2016, the Company redeemed the Class "G preference shares issued to
two major sharcholders, MaruEnergy JPSCO 1 SRL and the Government of
Jamaics, in the amount ol US53.0 million {Mote 22}, The principal and interast
pavments due to the Government of Jamaica of $1.3 million is unpaid as at 31
December 2016,
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Motes to the Financial Statements {continued)
December 31, 2016

([ Fxpressed in United Srares Dollars)

I8, Related party balances and transactions (continued)

(b)  Related parly Iransactions (continued):

{iii)

(iv)

fn 2013, the Company cntered into & commercial lease agreement for its Head
Office land and building sifuated at 6 Knutsford Boulevard, Kingston 5 with
The Jamaica Public Service Company Limited (JPSCO) (Original 1973)
FEmplovees' Pension Plan, a related party. The lease agreement is for an initial
bease term of ten {10% vears which commenced on January |, 2003 and is
rengwable for a further period of five {3} vears. Kental payments for the year
were 50,82 million {2085 50,82 million).

The Company supplies electricity to related parties including the Government
of Jamaica [see note 34 (a)(i}]. Total revenue from the Government for the year
2006 was 31132 million (2013; 51231 million].

The above transactions were executed in the ordinary course of business,

19, Customers’ deposits

2016 2013

000 STO00

Customers® deposits for electricity service (1) 14,868 14,834
Customers” advances for construction (i) 9,478 10,220
24,294 25,054

ity In general, the Company requires a deposit from customers before providing service.
The depesit is refundable upon termination of service subject to certain conditions,
[oerest is pald annually o custemers and applied o their electricity accounts
according o rates prescribed by the OUR [Note 1{b)], which ars broadly equivalent
1o rates applicable to saving deposit accounts.

{ii)  Customer advances for construction relate to non-interest-bearing depesits obtained
by the Company in relation to construction projects being undertaken by potential
cuslomers. These amounts are refundable subject to certain conditions.
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Motes to the Financial Statements (continued}
December 31, 2016

( Expressed in United States Dollarsy

20, Long-term foans

{a)

(h)
()
(d}

(el
{f)

(2
(h)
(i)
)
(k)
(1)

(m)

2016 2015
3000 Fr000

Kreditanstall lur Weideraudan of Frankfurt

Government of Jamaica (KFW/GOI),

T% Bxed rate, repayable 2030 [£3.9 million

(20 5: €3.9 million)] 4.075 4.231
Intermational Finance Corporation (1FC) variable rate,

repayable 2020 13,208 16,365
Deutsche Bank as trustees of the holders of the 11%

Senior Motes repayable 202 | [75.90] 76,284
Citibank Japan™EX] variable rate,

repavable 2020 29 824 6618
Proparco variable rate, repavable 2020 26,530 33,076
OPEC Fund for International Development variable rate,

repayable 2020 [ 5999 13,722
FirstCaribbean International Bank (FCTR) variable rate,

repayable 2018 5,568 9.229
Peninsula Corporation 3.25% fixed rate,

repayable 2017 8,000 0,000
Citibank/Ohverseas Private Investment Corporation

variable rate, repayable 2017 T.500 21,249
Citibank/Overseas Private Investment Corporation

variahle rate, repayable 2020 27227 -
FirstCaribbean International Bank (FCIBY 830M variable

rale, repayable 2020 29,719 29,579
Export Development Canada variable rate,

repavable 2019 4,563 3,979
Espirito Santo Bank 6.5% fixed rate,

repayable 2016 5 515
Tolal long-lerm loans 344,204 354217
Less: Current portion (_59.622) (_47.925)
MWon-gurrent portion 284,582 206,282
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Motes to the Finaneial Statements (continued)
Drecember 31, 2016
[ Lxpressed in United Siates Dollars)

20,  Long-term leans (continued)

{z) This loan was recelved from the Government of Jamaiea (GOJ), based on a formal
an-lending apreement dated January 17, 1996, Under the lerms ol the original
agreement with KEW, the loan is unsccured and repayable commencing in 2010
through 2030, Inlerest is payable semi-annualty in arrears.

()  This loan is unsceurcd and repayable in eighteen semi-annnal instalments of $1.7
million, commencing March 2012. The variahle interest rate is based on LIBOR plus
5.50% until 2004 and a spread of 5.25% therealter, Interest s paid semi-annually
commenging March 201 1. The amounl due i stated net of debt (ssuance costs of
30013 milTion (20135: 36,30 million}.

(<) This represents unsecured 5% Senior MNoles issued on the US bond market and is
tradable in Portal, a subsidiary of Nasdag Stock Market, Inc. The Motes are payable
in fuil on maturity; 8179.20 million 1o mature on July &, 2021 and $0.80 millien
matured on July 6, 2016, Interest payments are to be made on January 6 and July 6
annually with record dates of December 23 and June 22, respectively, and interest
rates of 11% for 180360 of principal amounts outstanding as at record dates, The
amount due is stated net of debt issuance costs, m the amount of 83.2 miilion (2013:
3.7 million)

(d)  This loan is unsecurad and is repayable in sixteen semi-annual instalments of $4
million, which commenced in June 2013, Interest is also paid semi-anmually. The
variable interest rate is based on LIBOR plus | 7% per annum. The amount due is
srated net of debt issuance costs of 32.7 million {2015 $4 million),

(e This loan is unsecured and is repayzble in cighleen semi=annual nstalments of $3.3
million, which commenced in May 2012, The wariable interest rale is based on
LIBOR plus 5.50% per annum until 2015 and 5.25% therealler, The amount due is
stated net of debt issuance costs of $0.36 million (2015: $0.50 million).

{f1  This loan is unsecured and is repayable in cighteen semi-annual instalments of $1.4
millien, which comumenced in May 2012, The varizhle inleres] rate is based on
LIBOR plus 5.50% per annum unti] 2014 and 5.25% thereafter. The amount due is
stated ner of debr issuance costs of $0.11 million (2015; 80,16 million),

(g)  This loan is unsecured and is repayable in eight semi-annual instalments of 51.9
million, which commenced in October 2014, The variable intercst rate is based on
the & month LIBOR plus 5.3%. The amount due is stated net ol debt issuance costs of
£0.06 million (2013 $0.14 million),

(b} This loan is unsecured and is repayable by a bullet payment at maturity in January
2017. lnterest is paid quarterly at a fixed interest rate of 5.25%,
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Mntes to the Financial Statements {continued)
December 31, 2016
( Fxpressed in United States Dollars)

20,

Long-term leans (continued)

(1)

a)

(k3

(0

{m)

This foan is unsecurcd and relates to a USE30 million facility, The facility is
repayable in eight guarterly instalments of 3380 million and commenced in
Scptember 2005, The variable inlerest rate is based on LIBOR plus 5.4%., The
amount due is stated net of debt issuance cost of $0.06 mitHon (2015 040 million).

This loan is unsecured and relates to a USS30 miflion tacility. The Facility is
repayable in sixteen guarterly instalments of 51,8 million and commenced in
December 2016, The variable interest rate is based on LIBOR plus 4.53%, The amount
due is stated net of debt issuance cost of $0.38 million (2015; $0.80 million).

This loan is unsecured is repayable in in eight semi-annual instalments of $3.735
million and commences in January 2017. The wvariable interest rate is based on
LIBOR plus 5.5%. This amount due is stated net of debt issuance cost of $(.28
million (2015: $3.40 million}

This loan is unsecured and attracts inferest at & rate of 6 maonth LIBOR plus 1.6%,
The utilisation of the funds is restricted to capital expenditure on goods and services
ariginating in Canada. The principal amounts were drawn on varicus dates with
intarest and principal repayable quarterly for cach draw-down,

This was an unsecurcd loan facililty for which the wiilisation of the [unds was
restricted 1o capital expenditure on goods originating in the United States, 'The
amounts wore drawn down on various dates and prineipal and interest was repayahble
semi-agnnually for each draw-down. This loan was repaid during the year,

Compliaree wirh delt covenanis

Under the terms of the long term loan agreements with certain international development
fipancial instihstions, the Company is required o mainlain a minimuwm ratio of Debt to
Farnings before Interest Tax Depreciation and Amorlisation (EBITDA) of 3.5:1, As at
December 31, 2016, the Company was in compliance with itz debl covenants,

Shareholders loan

The sharsholder's loan, which was unsecured and due to EWP (Barbados) SRLI1, a 40%
shareholder in the Company, under torms similar o the Class ' preference shares
described in Note 22 was repaid during the vear.
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Motes to the Financial Statements (conbinued)
December 31,2016 S
(Expressed in United Stares Dollars)

22, Preference shares
This comprises cumuolative preference shares as follows;

MNumber of share

3
2018 013 2016 2015
F 030 Fooa
7% Class B shares 420,000 4200, 0 38 38
5% Class C shares G, 500 66,500 6 a
3% Class [ shares Ga0,000 6A GO0 a1l al
a% Class E shares 300,000 300,000 21 27
9.5% Class [ shares 2,455,607 2455607 24,556 24,556
11% Class G shares - 299954 - 3.000
3,922 107 4,222,061 24,688 27688

The preference shares listed as Classes B, C, [ and E are cumulative non-voting and arc
preferred only in respeet of return of capital and any dividends in arrcars on a winding up.
Dividends on these shares are payable quarterly at fixed rates per annum in Jamaica dollars.

Class [ prefersnce shares are listed on the Jamaica Steck Exchange and are nen-
redeemable, whilst the Class G preference shares were redeemable and were held by two of
the Company’s existing major ordinary stock holders. The Class G preference shares were
redeemed in 2016, The significant terms and conditiens of both these classes of preference
shares are as follows:

{i}  Priority of payrment to receive all dividends over any form of capital distributions;
(i) Tull voting rights on winding up;

(iii)  Ranking in priority o common equity (but behind preference shares listed as classes
B, C, D and E) in the event of a winding up; and

{ivi Dividends are payable quarterly at fixed rates per annum in Jamaican dellars indexed
to-the United States dellar,

Preference shares have been claszilied in these financial statements as financial liabilities,

23, Deferred laxalion

Deferred taxation relates to:

Recagnised in Recogrised in
Balanc: ut other Balance at ailher Halance a
[Decembar 31 Recogriscd i comprehensive Decernber 31 Hecognised in comprehensive  Decemnber 31
204 prodis o lyss ingome 2015 profit or loss Halesi 2ie
5000 5000 5000 Frooc F000 00 000
| Mot 28{m)] [Matz ZE(a]]
Langpluyes benefig, net [ 4,683) 105 {2,087) [ BEe0 &0 (2.234) { 8224)
Unrealizad forcign
ExCENEE BUINS {20y [ 445) - { 2487 [ ) - { Z.687)
Prasperty, plang &
quipmEIL {50 0043 374 G [55.263) 7,808 : (47,3535}
Currlative tax
loases 27,2447 (5,095 = 21,352 (78620 - 13,450
Accourls puyable 44517 1,144 - 75K ] 658 - 6,015
Chnar [_4.33H) 5258 76l (&l . 700
(36,283} 048 {2082} {34,018) {L2LL) (2.234) {E05] )
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Motes to the Finangial Statements {continued)
December 31, 2016
i Exprersed tn Uhiited States Dallars)

24, Delerred revenue
Delerred revenue tepresents expendilure recoverable from certain customers for wiring

their dwelling houses in order to facilitate certification to receive slectricity supply. This
will be released lo income as these cusiomers are billed to recover such expenditure (INote

9,

2016 2015

000 2000

Balance ar the beginning of the vear 615 1,488
Released to profit or loss { A8y (873
133 a15
Current portion included in other payables (Nate 17) {133 (3700
Non-current - _ 243

25, Operating revenug

The Company's revenue arises from the supply of clectricily services in accordance with
the Licence [Motes 1{z) and F{b}].

26, Expenses

(a) Costolsales

2016 2015

s000 SO0
Fuel (306,38%) {367.291)
Purchased power {excluding fuel) (Note 4) (121,064) {105,771
Other (339 (569

(427,792) (473,631)

{b}  Operating expenses
2016 2015
Fo00 F000

Deprectation and amortisation
Staff cast — Other employees’ costs

77.607) ( 57.949)
67,529) ( 67,722}

{

(
Staff cost - Key management [ 135) { 1,768)
Drector's fees and emoluments i 37} { 34
Repairs and maintenance i 17.398) { 15,638)
Selling expense (advertizsing and marketing) 11 { 733
Audit fees { 147) I 149}
Bad debl expenses [ 10,721 ( 13,729
General expenses [_A4.140) (_42.263)

(220,337} (200,047)
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Motes to the Financial Statements {continned)
December 31, 2016
[ Expressad in United States Dollars)

26, LExpenses (eontinued)

{c)  Net finance costs

Foreign exchange losses, nat

Other finance costs:
Long-term loans
Customer deposits
Bank overdraft and other
Preference dividends
Dbt issuance costs and expenses
Orher debl expenses

Finance income:
[nterest income
[nterest capitalised during construction [Note 3(d}Y]

{30,532)
( 13
{ 763)
{ 2,671)
( 2,946)
{__921)

(37.846)
881
1944
_2.825

(35.814)

2015
000

(_4.925)

(30,339)
{ 606)
{ 2,146)
( 2.653)
( 1,665)
(_2.553)

(39,982)

L0682
L.368

2,430

(42,477)

Interest income arises materially from treasury transactions entered into in the

ordinary course of business,

27, Orher income and expenses

(g} Other income comprises:

Rental income
Insurance Procecds
Project development fee income
Miscellaneous proceeds (rom serap sales
and other settlements
Reduction in provision for sick leave buy back
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Motes to the Financial Statements {continued)
Degember 31, 2016

[ Expressed in United States Dollars)

27, Other

ineomes and expensas {continued)

(b)

Other expenses comprise:

2016

EO0n

Miseellaneous expenses [ 304)

Restrucluring costs [ 834)

Inventory and house wiring cost write off [ 811)
Provision for sick leave buy out =

Loss on disposal of properly, plant and cquipment (___20)

(L.273)

28, Taxaton

(&)

(b}

2015
000

[ 417
[ 3,497
[ 3,563)
{ 3.,958)
(_1.834)
(15.289)

Taxalion is computed al 33%% of the Company's results for the vear, adiusted for

tax purposes and comprises:

2016
000
Current fax expense:
Current incorme ax expense 7.730)
Adjustment for prior year under acerual -
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of temporary
differences (MNote 23) {1.211)
Taxation expenss (8.941)
Reconciliation ol tax expense:
2016
000
Profit before taxation 32,597
Computed "expected" tax at 33%:% 10,997
Tax effect of differences hetween profil for
tinancial statements and tax reporting purposes
in respect of:
Investment allowances [ 3,809)
Loan fees disallowed [,233
Other SR
Taxuaiion cxpense 2941
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(6,735)
(1,336)

3.74
{4,322

-1
A

20135
$000)
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Maotes 1o the Financial Statements {continuad)
December 31. 2016
{Expressed in United States Dollars)

28, Taxation (eontinued)

() Tax losses:

At the reporting date, the Company had unused tax losses of approximately $40
million (2013: %64 million) being carried forward for offset against future taxable
profits. The amount being carried forward is subject to the agreement of the Tax
Authorities. Tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely, however, the amount
that can be utilised in any one year is rastricted to 50% of the current year’s taxabla
profits,

29, Larnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS 15 calewlated by dividing the profit for the vear atiributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year,

2016 2015
Fooo F000
Profit for the year 24.05 26,507
MNumber of shares
{shown in thousands - Note 14) 21,828,195 21,828,195
Larnings per share/stock unit ollg 0.12¢

30, Dividends

Dividends on cumulative preferance shares accrued at December 31, 2016 amounted to
50,6 million {2015: 51.3 million} [see note 17].
31, Commitmernts
(a) Capital;
At December 31, 2014, commitments for capital expenditure, for which no provision

has been made n these (inancial statemnents, amounted to approximately $2.6 million
(2015: 38.0 million).
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Motes to the Financial Statements {continued)
December 31, 2016

{Expressed in United States Dollars)

32, Commitments (continued)

(k) Lease:

In addition to its commitments under PP contracts (Nete 4), the Company had
unexpired operating lease commitments at Decemnber 31, 2016, pavable as follows:

2016 2015

F00n 5000

Within ! year 8,742 0,413
From 1-2 years 8,739 0,410
From 2-3 years 1,576 2,410
From 3-4 yeary G925 L0338
From 4-5 years 921 028
Over § years 6,326 6468
21,229 27,267

Contingent liabilities and assel

L)
fad

Mg oal December 31 2006, the Company 15 subject to various lawsuits in the normal course
of business. The outcome of these lawsuits cannot be determined with certainty. However,
in the opinion of management and its legal counsel, where it is more likely than not that an
outflow of resources by the Company will occur and the amount can be detenmined, a
provision is made,

On February 13, 20135, the OUR izsued a directive for the Company to repay certain foreign
exchange adjustment charges on fuel, amounting to 57.6 million, which had been billed 1o
customers in a previous period. A provision has been included in the financial statements
for these charges. The Company has appealed the directive en the basis that the charges
represent legitimate business costs which it should be abie to recover,

As at December 31, 2016, provisions of 38.9 million {2015: $13.4 million) which includes

$%.9 million {2015; $9.4 million} pursuant to pending fegal actions, were made in the
financial statements (Note 1 7).

34.  Financial instruments

{a) Tinancial risk management:

The Company has exposure io the following risks from its use of financial
instruments:

«  Creditrisk
s Liquidity risk
o Market risks
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Maotes to the Financial Statements {continued)
December 31, 2016
(Lxpressed in United States Dollars)

34, Financial instruments (continued)

{a)  Financial risk management (conlinued);

This note presents information aboul the Company's exposure to each of the above
risks arising in the ordinary course of the Company's business, the Company's
objectives, policies and procosscs [or measuring and managing risk, and the
Company's management of capital,

The Board of Directors, in managing the business of the Company, oversees the
Company's risk management framework, Key management has responsibility for
monitoring the Company’s risk management policics in their specified areas and
report quarterly to the Board of Directors on their activitics,

The Company's risk management policics are eslablished 1o identify and analyse the
risks faced by the Company, to sct appropriate risk limits and contrels, and to
manitor risk and adherence to limits, Risk munagement policies and systems are
reviewead regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, The Cempany, through
training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined
and constructive contral environment, in which all employess understand their roles
and obligations,

The Company's directors have monitoring oversight of the risk management palicies
and are assisted in these functions by the Company's internal audit department, The
internal audit department undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Board
of Directors,

i} Credit risl:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss o the Company if a customer or
counterparty (o 4 [inancial insteument fails to meet its contraciual obligations,
and arises principally from the Company's trade receivables, which is stated
net of an allowance for impairment losses.

As part of its management of credit risk, the Company requires account
deposits from certain customers. Additionally, manapement has processes in
place for the prompt disconneetion of services to. and recovery of amounts
owed by defaulting customurs.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment losses that represents
ity best estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables,
The main component of this allowance is a loss component that relates to
individually significant exposures, The loss allowance {3 determined based on
historical payment statistics for similar financial assets and an assessment of
the debtors’ ability to settle the debt [see also notes 12 and 3(1].
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Mores 1o the Financial statements (continued)
December 31, 2016

{Lxpressed in United States Dollars)

-
J

4

Financial instruments (continued)

(a)

Financial risk management (continued):

(i)

(i)

Credit risk (continued):

Cash and short term deposit balances are managed by the Company's treasury
department and amounts are held with reputable banks and financial
institutions considered to have minimal risk of default.

The Company considers concentrations of rsk by reterence to the amount of
exposure it has 1o individual customers, including their relaled parties. Al
December 31, 2016, the Company had significant concentrations of credit risk
in respect of amounts receivable from the Government of Jamaica and Jts
affifiates, in respect ol electricity charges, aggregating $55 million (2015; 842
tillion). The Company maintains a very close relationship with the Ministry
of Finance and the Ministry of Local Government in telation to this matter
and recurring discossions are held regarding the reduction of the pulstanding
balances.

Liguidity risk:

Liguidity risk, also referred to as funding risk, is the risk that the Company will
encounter difficulty in raising funds to meel commitments associated with
financial instruments. Liguidity risk may resull from an inabitily o sell a
financial asset quickly at, or close to, its fuir value, Prudent liguidity risk
management implics maintaining sufficient cash and marketable seeurities, and
the awailability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
[acililics.

The Company's approach 1o managing liguidity is 1o ensure, as far as possible,
that it will always have sufficient liguidity to meet its labilitics when due,
under both normal and stressed conditions, without ineurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to its reputation.

Key management of the Company aims at maintaining fexibility in Funding by
keeping lines of funding available as well as by acquining and maintaining
prudent cash resources in appropriate currencies, For example, the Company's
treasury department receives and maonitors information from other departments
regarding the liguidity profile of their financial assets and labilities and
maintains a portfolio of short-term liguid assets and loans 1o ensure Lhat
sufficient liquidity is maintained within the Company as a whole. As at
December 31, 2016, the Company had unutilised lines of credil aggregating
560.4 million (2015: $104.1 million),
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Motes tr the Fimancial Stalements (contimued )
December 31,2006
(Expressed in United States Dallars)

3. Financial instraments {continued)

{a)  Financial risk management (continued):
(it} Ligquidity risk (contineed);

An analysis of the contractual maturitics of the Company's financial liabilities
i5 presented below, The analysis is provided by estimating the timing of
payment of the amounts recognised in the statement of financial position,

Comtractual undiseounted cash Dows
Total Lesy 1-2 el oo
Camying  cash than YUATE 3-3 &-10  than
amount  outfow ] wvear 10 vears WERTS vears 10 vears
S0 00 S000 $0K S0 SN0 000

;:n;g.-l]bsl: 3] 2;!] 0

Accounts payahlet 126,992 126,992 126992 - - - .
Long term lnans 34420 4R2 416 Bed35 62855 310024 1,352 a5l
D 10 related parties 2 966 2,506 2966 - - -
customer deposits 24,294 24 284 - 21,

2 %134 20362
|

Taotal financial lighiliies 498456 616668 206393 &1L83% 310524 a084 21412

Degember 31, 2013

Accounts payvakle® 0348 95 148 98348 - - - -
Long tenn ioans 354,217 503232 79558 Gn842  [S0312 0 1747058 1.817
[Crue to related parlies 1,624 1,624 1624 - - - -
Customer depnsiis 25054 33054 - - - 4,592 20462

Total financial tiabilitties 479,243 28200 175330 SGE43 150512 19267 22279
*Excludes provisions and delerred revenue,
The preference shares have no specific maturily dates,

Contracted off-balance cash payments in respect of independent power
purchase agreements are disclosed in Mote 4.

(i) Marker risk:

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as inlerest rates,
foreign exchange rates and equity prices will affect the value of the Company's
gssets, the amount of its liabilities andfor the Company's income, Market risk
arises in the Company due to Nuctuations in the value of assets and liabilities,

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while oplimising Lhe return on risk.
The nature of the Company's exposures {0 market misks and its ohjectives,
policies and processes for managing these risks have not changed significantly
over the prior year,
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MOTSE 10 TNS I Nanclal STarements ( Conunued)
Year ended December 31, 2016
[ Expressed in United Siates Dollars)

34. Financial instruments (continued)

(a)  Financial risk management (continuad:
{iii) Market risk {continued):

For each of the major components of market risk, the Company has policies
and procedures in place which detail how each risk is managed and maonitored.
The management of each of these major components ol market risk and the
exposure of the Company at the reporting date to cach major risk are addressed
hilaw,

At December 31, 2016, the Company had no exposure Lo markel risk relating
lo changes in equity prices.

. Interast Fate Fiak:

interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will
NMuetuate due to changes in market interest rates. The Company contracts
linancial liahilities at fixed or floating interest rates, These primarily
relate 1o loans, cuslomer deposits, cerigin trade payables and bank
averdralis.

The maturity profiles and interast rates of the Company's long-term loans
are disclosed in Mote 20, and the details of customer deposits in Mole 19,

Interest beartng financial assets relate to cash and cash equivalents,

At December 31, 2016, the interest profile of the Company's
interest-bearing financial instruments was:

Carrving amount
2016 2015
000 £000
Fixed rate instruments:
Financial assets 34,848 31,157
Financial liabilities (213,733) (418,119
Varizhle rale instruments:
Financial lahilities (170,007 (178620

Fair value sensitivily analysis for lixed rate instruments:

The Company does not accounl for any fxed rate (inancial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, Therefore a change in inlerest
rales al the reporting date would not afTect the statement of profit or loss.
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MNOTES T0 The Financial statements (continued )
Year ended December 31, 2016
{Expressed (n United States Dollars)

34,  Financial instruments (contioued)

ia) Financial risk management {continued):
{iii)  Market risk {continued):
o Jnterest rate risk (comtinued):
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate imstruments;
A change ol 100750 (2015; 100:50) basis points in interest rates at the
reporting date would have increased/decreased equity and profit or loss by
the amounts shown below, This analysis assumes that all other variables, in

particular forelgn currency rates, remain constant.

Effect on profit or loss

——1 ] |1 RS, |
100bp S0bp 100bp  50bp
incresse  decrease ingrgase  decrease
foon 000 000 FO00
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (1700} 830 (1. 786} 8293

e Foreign currency risk:

Foreign currency risk 1s the risk that the value of & financial instrument
will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company incurs foreign currency risk primarily on the setlement of
accounts  receivable, sccounts  payable and  borrowings  that  are
denominated in a currency other than the United States dellar. The
currencies giving rise Lo significant foreign currency risk are the Jamaica
dollar {1%) and Euro (€).

The Company manages foreipn exchange exposure by maintaining
adequate liquid resources in appropriate currencies and by managing the
timing of pavments on foreign currency liabilities,
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MOles 10 The FInAncial SLalements (Continnea;
Year ended December 31, 2016

[ Expressed in United Siates Dollars)

34,

Financial insteurments {continued)

(a)

Financial risk management {continued):
{iii}  Market risk {continued )
o [Forelgn curreacy risk iconiinuged):

The table below shows the Company's foreign currency exposure, at the
reporling date:

2016 -
15 € E =4
couivalent
S0 bR 000 S0
asn and cash
couivalents 41,114 = - 3,770
Trade ard cther
receoivablos 1o 119,935 - - 148, 862
Ciher asset 11,431 - - kAt
Accounts payable { 5463157 (4,029 (lals { 46,568)
Long-lerm Toans - (3,57, - [ 4,073
Customer deposits {3, 120.432) - = [ 24,295
11L288,891 | Z.908) (14813 19,783
2015 o
15 € £ L's§
euivalent
F000 F000 S L1000
Cash and cash
eqlivatents (50,790 - n 5,405
Trade and other
receivahles §4.287.707 - - 122,134
Oher aszel 74,176 - - G160
Aceounis payable §T.029.342) (3.,4353) (213 [ 42,105
Leng-term loans - [3,879) - [ 4,714}
Customer deposils [ 3,01 6,908) - = [ 25.054)
4,966,283 (1.332) (2D 36,280

Sensitivity analysis:

A 6% (2015: 8% strengthening of the United States dollar against the
lamaiea dollar, Curo and the GBT would have increased/{decreased) eguity
and profit or loss by the amounts shown helow. This analysis assumes that
all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain conslant,
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IOTE5 10 1he PInancial »1RTSmants (Continued)
Year ended December 31, 2016
{Lxpressed in Uniled States Dollars)

34, [inancial instruments (continued)

(a) Financial risk management (continued):
{(iii)  Market risk (continued):
o Foreign currency risk (continned):

Sensitivity analvsis {continued):

2018 2015
Eguity Profit{loss) Equity Profit/{loss)
S0 F 000 000 5000
I (5,274 {3,274) {3,229) (3,229
Euro (€} 498 408 713 713
GBP (£) (_12) (12) P (1
Tatai (4.788) (4,788) (2.317) 2,317}

A 1% (2015: 1% weakening of the United States dollar against the
Jamaica dollar, Euro and the GBI, respectively, at year end would have
the opposite effect, on the basis that all other variables remain constant,

2016 2015
Equity Throdit Equity Profit
F000 5000 F000 000
IS BTG 874 413 413
Euro (£) ( 83) ( 83 ( 89) ( 89)
GBP (£) i 2 - -
Total 198 798 224 324

(k)  Operational risk:

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide varicty ol
causes associated with the Company's procezses including regulatory risk, personnel,
technology and infrastrocture, and from external factors other than credit, market and
liquidity tisks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and
generally accepted slandards of corporate behavior,

The Company's objective is to manage operational risk so as o balance the avoidance
of financial losses and damage to its reputation with overall cost cffectiveness and to
avaid control procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to
address operational risk is assigned to senior management within the Company.
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NOTES [0 THE FIMANCIAl STATSMENTS { CONTITIED )
Year ended December 31, 20506
(Fxpressed In United Srares Dollars)

34, Financial instruments (continued)

{c} Capital risk management:

Capital risk is the risk that the Company fails to comply with mandated regulatory
requirements, resulting in a breach of its operating Licence and the possible adverse
effects on its taritt structure n accordance with its Licence [Naote 1(b)]. The
Company’'s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the
‘equity’ on the face of the statement of financial position, are;

= Tocomply with the operational requirements set by the regulators;

»  To safeguard the Company's ghility to conlinue as a going concern so that it can
continue lo provide relurns for shareholders and benefits lor other stakeholders;

»  Tomaintain creditor and market confidence; and

= Tomaintain a strong capilal base o supporl the development of its business.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is debt as a proportion of
total capital. The Company aims to maintain a gearing ratio in the range of fifty
percent (50%) to sixty percent (60%). For purposes of calculating this ratio
preference shares are treated 83 equity instruments and included in total equity.

2016 2015

$000 $'000
Current maturity of long term loans 30,622 47935
Long term loans 284,542 306,282
Shareholder's loan - 2,000
Total debt a4 204 356.217
Share capital 261786 261,784
Capital reserve 4,145 4,145
Capital redemption reserve 3,000 -
Retained earnings 126,480 100,960
Preference shares 24688 27.6BE
Total equity 420094 394.579
Capital and debt 764,203 130,736
Giearing ratio 45% 4%

There were no changes in the Company's approach to capital management during
the vear.

id}  Fair value disclosure:

Fair value is the price that would be received o sell an assel or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction betwcen markel participants at the measursment
date, The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organised
financial markets is determined by referenee to guoted market bid prices at the
close of business on the reporting date.
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MNotes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended Decernber 31, 2016
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

34, linancial instruments {conbineed)

{d)  Fair value disclosure {continued}:

For financial instruments where there is no active market, fair value is determined
using valuation technigues, Such lechnigues include using recent arm's lengrh market
transactions, reference to the current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis or other wvaluation models.
Management assessed thal the carrving amounts of cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, related party balances, bank overdraft, accounts payabls and
shorl-term loan approximate their fair values largely due to the short-term maturities
of these instruments. Additionally, the cost of all monetary assets and liabilities has
been appropriately adjusted to reflect estimated losses on realisation or discounts on
setlloment,

The [wir value of customer deposits and refundable customer advances cannot
practicaily be determined, as payment dates and amounts are net determinable.

Basis for determining fair values of financial liabilities:

Quoted equities are valued using the quoted market bid prices listed on the Jamaica
Slock Exchunge,

Other investment instruments are valued using the following techniques:

s Obtain bid vield from yield curve provided by a recognised pricing source (which
uses arket-supplied indicative bids),

e LUsing this yield, determine price vsing aceepted fonmula,

s Apply price to estimate fair value.

Set out below is a comparison of the carrving amounts and fair value of the
Company's financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are
reasonable approximations of fair values:

2016 wr e 2018
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value armound value
£000 000 000 000

Financial fiabitities:
Preference shares 24,688 24,409 27.688 27.476
Long term loans 344,204 445,028 354217 452 251
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Iotes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2016
{Lxpressed in United Stares Dollars)

34,  Financial instruments {continued)

(d)  Fair value disclosure {contlinued};

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's
assets and liabilitics.

2016
Level 1 Level 2
_Fooo $000 Total
Lighilities for which fair values are
dizclosed:
Preference shares {24 409 - { 24.409)
Long term loans - (445,028} (445.028)

(24,409) (445.028) (469,417)

. 2015
Level 1 Level 2
_ S0 000 Toral
Liabilities for which fair values are
disclosed:
Preference shares {(27.476) - { 27,476)

Long term loans

(452,251) {432,251}
(21.476) (452251)  (419.7227)

Lel
L

During 2016, the Company modified the useful lives of certain fixed and intangible assets
to bring them in line with the Amended Electricity Licence issued on January 27, 2016 by
Ministry of Science, Technology, Energy and Mining. In accordance with 145 § -
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, 1he impact of the
change 1o the useful lives have been applied during the period of change and over futre
periods. This has resulted in an immediate increase in depreciation and amortisation
charges of approximately $13.4 million during the period 2016. Subsequent to the year end,
or February 1, 2017, the Office of Utlities Repulation issued a Determination Notice
which stated that the adjustments Lo the depreciable lives of the assets, would qualify as an
exceptional circumstance and therefore would be recoverable through the Z-factor
mechanism included in the Licence. The Determination urther stated that the recovery of
the $13.4 million would take place over a one year period beginning July 2017, Had
recognition been permitled in the financial statements net profit after tax for the year would
have increased by $8.9 million to 533 million.
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P> Notice of Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Jamaica Public Service Company Limited will be
held on Friday, 28th day of July, 2017 at the Company’s registered offices, 6 Knutsford Boulevard, Kingston 5
commencing at 10:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. TO RECEIVE THE ACCOUNTS

To receive the Audited Accounts for the year ended December 31, 2016 and the Reports of the Directors
and Auditors thereon and to consider and (if thought fit) pass the following resolution:

That the Accounts for the year ended December 31, 2016 together with the Reports of the Directors and
Auditors thereon be approved and adopted.

2. TO ELECT DIRECTORS

i. In accordance with Articles 86 and 123 of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, Directors Ha Kyoung
Song, Masao Imazato, Suzette Buchanan, Colin Williams and Mo Majeed, having been appointed to the
Board since the last Annual General Meeting shall cease to hold office and being eligible, offer
themselves for election.

The Company is asked to consider, and if thought fit pass the following resolutions:
a. “That Director Ha Kyoung Song (EWP, Barbados, 1, Srl) is hereby elected a Director of the Company”
b. “That Masao Imazato (MaruEnergy JPSCO 1, Srl) is hereby elected a Director of the Company”

c. “That Director Suzette Buchanan (Government of Jamaica) is hereby elected a Director of the
Company”.

d. “That Director Colin Williams (Government of Jamaica) is hereby elected as a Director of the
Company”.

e. “That Director Mo Majeed (MaruEnergy JPSCO 1, Srl) is hereby elected as an Alternate Director.

ii. That Mr. Seiji Kawamura having being appointed Director be and is hereby elected as Chairman of
the Board in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation.

3. TO AUTHORIZE DIRECTORS TO APPOINT AUDITORS AND FIX THEIR REMUNERATION
4. ANY OTHER BUSINESS FOR WHICH DUE NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN.

DATED THIS 28TH DAY OF APRIL 2017

.\ :@@ /-4’:.219__

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
Katherine P.C. Francis
Secretary

JPS
JAMAICA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2016

1107 |



P> Form of Proxy

as my/our Proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held
on the 28th day of July, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

RESOLUTION FOR AGAINST

Resolution 1

Resolution 2(i)(a)
i)(b)
()
)
)

Resolution 2
Resolution 2
Resolution 2(i)(d)
i)(e)

Resolution 2
Resolution 2

—_—~ o~ o~ o~ o~ o~

Resolution 3

Resolution 4

(Any Other Business)

DATED THE DAY OF 2017

(signature) (signature)

1. If you wish to appoint a proxy other than the Chairman of the Meeting, please insert the person’s name and
address and delete the words “the Chairman of the Meeting or failing him”. Initial the deletion.

2. Any alteration to this form of proxy should be initialled

3. If the appointer is a corporation this form of proxy must be UNDER ITS COMMON SEAL or under the hand of
some officer or attorney of the corporation DULY AUTHORIZED IN WRITING

4. In case of joint holders the vote of the person whose name stands first on the Register will be accepted in
preference to the vote of the other holders.

5. To be effective this form of proxy and the power of attorney or other (if any) under which it is signed or a notar-
ially certified copy, of that power or authority must be deposited at Jamaica Public Service Company Limited,
6 Knutsford Boulevard, Kingston 5 for the attention of the Secretary not less than forty-eight (48) hours before
the time for the holding of the meeting.
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